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LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED
Minimum Disclosure in Directors' Report

A Information related to Life Insurance

Under this title following matters shall be disclosed

Gl Wb

Date of establishment: - 26.12.2000

Insurer license date: -07.08.2001

Insurance business type, nature: -The company issues life insurance contracts.
Date of commencement of business: - 01.09.2001

Company has listed in Nepal Stock Exchange on 21.03.2003.

B Insurer's Board of Directors shall approve following matters

L e

10.

11

12.

13.

14.

Tax, service charges, fine and penalties has been paid & there is no any dues thereof.

There is no any change in share structure in financial year 2080-81.

Solvency ratio is maintained as prescribed by Nepal Insurance Authority ie., 1.45 for FY 2080-81.

a) Statement regarding assets that financial amount contained in SOFP are in its fair value or cost, thus they
are not over stated.

b) Measurement basis of the assets recognized in financial statements: - The financial statement has been
prepared on historical cost or fair value regarding the assets.

Number of claims settled within the year are 30,830 and outstanding claim number are 5,864 and all the
outstanding claim shall be settled in FY 2081-82.

Investment made by company that are in line with prevailing laws.

Company has fully complied, the provision of Insurance Act 2079, Insurance Regulation, Company Act 2063,
NERSs and other prevailing laws & regulation.

Company has adopted appropriate accounting policy as guided by NFRS.

Company's Financial Position and Financial Performance reported in Financial Statements are presented
true & fairly.

We have implemented adequate and appropriate provision to safeguard the assets and for identification and
mitigation against losses due to fraud, embezzlement and irregularities. For the Agents loan & receivable on
reinsurance we have made the adequate provision amounting to Rs. 50,435,683 & 2,682,085 respectively.
Management do not intend nor have any necessity to liquidate the company or cease company's operation
for foreseeable future, so the financial statement have been prepared based on going concern basis.

Internal control system of company is perfect with the size, nature & volume of the business.

Declaration that companies has not conducted any transactions contrary to Insurance Act, 2079, Insurance
Regulation, Companies Act, 2063, related regulations and directions with any person, firm, company and
insurer's director or with any entity in which insurer's director has interest.

There are no any penalties, levied by Nepal Insurance Authority for the financial year 2080-81

ranay Kumar Kon&yi;‘awal Ashok .@val

CEQ{ Director Director Director
¢
Praveen K. Molri Tablesh P y Siddhartha Mohanty

Director Director Chairman




K.J. & ASSOCIATES I
Q  Puichowk, Lalitpur

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Life Insurance Corporation (Nepal)
Limited (hereafter referred to as “LICN” or “the Company”) which comprise of Statement of
Financial Position as on Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024), the Statement of Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended Ashadh
31,2081 (July 15, 2024) and Notes to the financial statement, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes (hereafter referred to as “the financial
statements”).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements with the notes attached present fairly, in
all material respect, the financial position of the company as at Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)
and its financial performance, the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow statement for the year then ended in
accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS)

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the ICAN's Handbook of The Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the ICAN's Handbook of the Code of Ethics for professional Accountants. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the financial statements as whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

l . 01-5010510/512 info@cajsr.com & wwwkjassociates.com.np



S.N. | Key Audit Matters Auditor's Response

1. | Investment Our audit approach regarding verification of
The Investment of the company | process of investment:
comprises of investment in quoted equity a. Review of the investment of
instruments, debentures, mutual funds, company and its valuation having
fixed deposits of financial institutions. reference to NFRS issued by the
The valuation of the aforesaid securities Accounting Standard Board of Nepal.
has been done in compliance with NAS b. We assessed the nature of expected
39 read with NFRS 9. The investment in cash flow of the investments as well
the government and NRB bonds and T- as the business model adopted by
Bills should be recognized on reporting the management on the basis of
date on Amortized cost basis whereas available evidence/circumstances
other investments in equity instruments, and ensured that classification of
other than those held for trading, should investment is commensurate with
be valued at Fair Value through Other nature of cash flow and management
Comprehensive Income. intention of holding the investment.

c. For the investment valuation that are

Given the varieties of treatments done at amortized cost, we checked
recommended for  valuation of the EIR and amortization schedule on
investment based on nature of cash fiow, test basis.
the business model adopted, complexity d. For the investment valued through
of calculations and the significance of OCI for quoted investment, we
amount involved i.e. 100,302,577,745 in ensured that fair value has been done
such investments, same has been at the closing transaction rate in
considered as Key Audit Matter in our NEPSE as on 15.07.2024.
audit.

2. | Valuation of Gross Insurance Contract | Our audit approach regarding verification of

Liabilities

The valuation of the liabilities for
insurance contract involves complex and
subjective judgements about future
events, both external and internal to the
business for which small changes can
result in a material impact on valuation of
those liabilities.

Economic assumptions such as
investment return and associated
discount rates and operating
assumptions such as expenses,

mortality and lapse rates are the key
inputs.

Valuation of Gross
Liabilities incfuded:

Insurance Contract

a. We assessed the appropriateness of
actuarial assumptions, models, and
methodologies applied by the
Company in calculating policyholder
liabilities, reserves, and other
actuarial balances.

b. We reviewed key assumptions
including mortality rates, lapse rates,
interest rates, and expense
assumptions to ensure they were
based on reasonable and
supportable data.

¢. We evaluated whether the models
and methodologies used by the
Company were consistent with
industry standards and regulatory
requirements.

d. We verified the presentation of
insurance contract liabilities in the




financial statements to ensure
compliance with applicable
regulatory frameworks.

Revenue Recognition

The company recognizes insurance
premium income as soon as the amount
of premium is received, and policy paper
is issued. First premium is recognized
from the inception date and renewal
premium is recognized once renewal
premium is received.

Net earned premium is derived after
deducting ceded reinsurance premium
from gross earned premium.

The management considers revenue as a
key measure of evaluation of
performance and there is the risk of
revenue being recorded before the
receipt of premium amount and issue of
policy.

It was considered to be one of the areas
which required significant auditor
attention and was one of the matters of
most significance in the financial
statements as the amount of Net
premium income is significant i.e.
18,107,497,178.

Our audit approach regarding Revenue
Recognition included:

a) Tested the design and
implementation and  operating
effectiveness of key control over
revenue recognition.

b) Verified the premium with the
underwriting guidelines of the
company and performed the tests
through the sample policy files.

c) Tested on sample basis premium
received with the date stamp to
confirm the recognition of revenue in
correct accounting period.

Claims

Insurance claim is the major area of
expense for the amount. Total claims
incurred include paid claims and
outstanding claims for Death, Maturity or
other benefits.

The provision and payment of claims
was considered to be one of the areas
which required significant auditor
attention and was one of the matters of
most significance in the financial
statements as the amount of claim

Our audit approach regarding Claim
Expenses included:

a) Verified operational guidelines of the
company in relation to the processing and
payment of claims with respect to claim
payment directive of regulator.

b) Performed the test of controls, test of
details through the sample review of claim
files.

¢) Verified the claim paid on sample basis
with the proof of payments.

expense is significant i.e.
10,891,832,451.
Information Technology General | Our audit approach regarding Information

Controls

Technology of company is based upon the




IT Controls with respect to recording of
transactions, generating various reports
in compliance with Nepal Insurance
Authority  guidelines and  other
compliances to regulators is an
important part of the process. Such
reporting is highly dependent on the
effective working of Software and other
allied systems.

We have considered this as key audit
matter as any control lapses, validation
failures, incorrect input data and wrong
extraction of data may result in wrong
reporting of data to the management
shareholders, and regulators.

Guidelines issued by Nepal Insurance
Authority and it included:

a. Understanding the coding system
adopted by the company for various
categories of the products.

b. Understanding the feeding of the
data in the system and going through
the extraction of the financial
information and statements from the
IT system existing in the company.

c. Checking of the user requirements
for any changes in the
regulations/policy of the company.

d. Reviewed the reports generated by
the system on sample basis. We

verified the premium
income/expense and claim payment
in regard to policies issued and clam
intimated on test basis.

Emphasis of Matter Paragraph

We draw attention to Note 2(b) of the financial statements, which explains that the financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS),
as modified by the directives issued by the Nepal Insurance Authority. This framework departs
from the presentation and measurement requirements of NFRS such that 90% of the fair value
changes, which would ordinarily be recognized through fair value reserves, have been allocated
to the Policyholders' Fund. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Management is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us for our review after the date of this
auditor's report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and
we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the courses of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements




Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS), and for such internal controls as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statement that are
free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intendeds to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those
charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with NSA's will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As a part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the process. We also:

¢ Identify and assess therisk of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtained
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide an opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omission, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion of the effectiveness of the Company's internal controls.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. if we concluded that a material uncertainly exists, we were
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures were inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, further events or conditions may cause the company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting polices used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.




Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entity
or business activities to express an opinion on the financial statement. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicated with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant deficiencies in internal contro! that we
identify during our audit.

We also provided those charged with the governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independent, and communicated with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related standards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirement
On examination of the financial statement as aforesaid, we report that:

a)

b)
c)

d)

e)

9)

We have obtained information and explanations asked for, which, to the best of our knowledge
and belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

Proper books of account as required by Companies Act, 2063 have been kept by the Company.
To the best of our information and explanations given to us and from our examination of the
books of accounts of the company, we have not come across the causes where the board of
directors or any members thereof or any employee of the company has acted contrary to the
provisions of the law relating to accounts or caused loss or damage to the company
deliberately.

We did not come across any fraudulent causes causing fundamental effect relating to the
company.

Company's life assurance fund and other special reserves are as per prescribed provisions.
To the best of our information, Company is able to meet its long-term liabilities from its
assets.

We have not come across any cases where the company is involved in any business other
than those licensed by Nepal Insurance Authority or has issued any policies other than those
approved by Nepal Insurance Authority.




h) Reportable findings noted during the audit have been incorporated in our Preliminary Audit
Report issued to Audit Committee of the company and responses have been obtained from

Board of Directors accordingly.
i) We have not come across any cases where the company has acted against the interest of the

Assured.

Bishesh Chaudhary, FCA
(Partner)

K.J. & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Place: Lalitpur, Nepal
Date: 20" May 2025
UDIN: 250525CA01442amYqp



LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED
Statement of Financial Position
As At 15th July, 2024 (Ashad End 2081)

Fig in NPR
Particulars Notes Current Year Previous Year
Assets
Goodwill & Intangible Assets 4 97,200 138,192
Property and Equipment 5 424,229,329 461,401,762
Investment Properties 6 - -
Deferred Tax Assets 7 - 120,544,690
Investment in Subsidiaries 8 - -
Investment in Associates 9 - -
Investments 10 100,302,577,745 86,515,391,113
Loans 11 22,213,684,173 21,882,162,802
Reinsurance Assets 12 - -
Current Tax Assets 21 276,532,369 -
Insurance Receivables 13 28,942,871 22,350,904
Other Assets 14 8,236,838 11,350,971
Other Financial Assets 15 3,269,414,425 2,968,074,917
Cash and Cash Equivalent 16 1,857,624,512 2,449,593,817
Total Assets 128,381,339,463 114,431,009,169
Equity & Liabilities
Equity
Share Capital 17 (a) 2,653,200,000 2,653,200,000
Share Application Money Pending Allotment 17 (b) - -
Share Premium 17 (<) 61,151,801 61,151,801
Catastrophe Reserves 17 (d) 654,081,882 561,598,449
Retained Earnings 17 (&) 3,163,905,167 2,344,327,517
Other Equity 17 (f) 333,618,407 356,060,631
Non Controlling Interest 17(g) - -
Total Equity 6,865,957,257 5,976,338,398
Liabilities
Provisions 18 98,835,270 34,732,803
Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities 19 119,633,798,005 104,340,298,210
Deferred Tax Liabilities 7 18,450,239 -
Insurance Payable 20 85,613,711 29,463,461
Current Tax Liabilities 21 - 112,573,084
Borrowings 22 - -
Other Liabilities 23 563,165,793 596,263,951
Other Financial Liabilities 24 1,085,519,188 1,341,338,768
Total Liabilities 121,515,382,207 108,454,670,772
Total Equity and Liabilities 128,381,339,463 114,431,009,16%

The accompanying notes form an Integral Part of Financial Statements.

Damodar Paudyal % Komgli':awal

As per our report of even date

Ashok K.*4grawal

HOD(Accounts) CEO/Director Director Director
-
_ Lalipus
Praveen K. Molri Siddhartha Mohanty CA. Bishesh Chaudhary
Director Chairman Partner

Date : 20.05.2025

For K.J. & Associates
Chartered Accountants



LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED
Statement of Profit or Loss
For Period 17th July, 2023 - 15th July, 2024
(For the Year Ended Ashad, 2081)

HOD(Accounts) CEO/Director Director Director

Fig. in NPR
Particulars Notes - Current Year Previous Year
Income;
Gross Earned Premiums 25 18,107,497,178 17,470,067,480
Premiums Ceded 26 112,085,568 80,964,779
Net Earned Premiums 17,995,411,610 17,389,102,701
Commission Income 27 14,912,567 15,133,162
Other Direct Income 28 240,125,879 270,526,368
Interest Income on Loan to Policyholders i1 2,371,230,553 2,364,864,977
Income from Investments and Loans 29 9,349,529,759 8,264,441,870
Net Gain/(Loss) on Fair Value Changes 30 - -
Net Realised Gains/{Losses) 31 - -
Other Income 32 150,882 154,355
Total Income 29,971,361,250 28,304,223,433
Expenses:
Gross Benefits and Claims Paid 33 10,891,832,451 8,985,500,274
Clairns Ceded 33 34,884,996 26,376,545
Gross Change in Contract Liabilities 34 13,222,208,131 13,820,241,131
Change in Contract Liabities Ceded to Reinsurers 34 - -
Net Benefits and Claims Paid 24,079,155,586 22,779,364,860
Commission Expenses 35 1,394,226,097 1,435,375,609
Service Fees 36 134,965,587 143,598,863
Other Direct expenses 37 - -
Employee Benefits Expenses 38 472,423,651 382,627,689
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 39 54,296,035 55,192,790
Impairment Losses 40 - 12,080,571
Other Operating Expenses 41 558,358,222 733,552,269
Finance Cost 42 20,546,728 23,918,512
Total Expenses 26,713,971,906 25,565,711,162
Net Pl:aht/(Loss) For The Yea.r Before. Share of Net Profits of 3,257,389,344 2,738512,271
Associates Accounted for Using Equity Method and Tax
Share of Net Profit of Associates accounted using Equity Method 9 - -
Profit Before Tax 3,257,389,344 2,738,512,271
Income Tax Expense 43 2,427,782,159 1,986,063,106
INet Profit/(Loss) For The Year 829,607,185 753,449,165
Earning Per Share 51 )
Basic EPS 31.27 28.40
Diluted EPS 31.27 28.40
The accompanying notes form an Integral Part of Financial Statements.
D)0 /
Damodar Paudyal y Kumar Komal?@iwal Ashok K. Agrawal As per our report of even

?wm— (—Cu;-—o/\/“
Praveen K. Molri Siddhartha Mohanty CA. Bishesh Chaudh
Director Chairman Partner
For KJ. & Associates
Date : 20.05.2025 Chartered Accountants




LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For Period 17th July, 2023 - 15th July, 2024

(For the Year Ended Ashad, 2081)
Fig. in NPR

Particulars Notes Current Year Previous Year
Net Profit/(Loss) For the Year 829,607,185 753,449,165

Other Comprehensive Income

a) Items that are or may be Reclassified to Profit or Loss

Changes in Fair Value of FVOCI Debt Instruments

Cash Flow Hedge - Effective Portion of Changes in Fair Value
Exchange differences on translation of Foreign Operation

Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for using
the equity method

Income Tax Relating to Above Items

Reclassified to Profit or Loss

b) Items that will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss
Changes in fair value of FVOCI Equity Instruments 200,478,249 (35,317,320)

Revaluation of Property and Equipment/ Goodwill & Intangible Assets
Remeasurement of Post-Employment Benefit Obligations (25,407,131) -
Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for using 9
the equity method
Income Tax Relating to Above Items (43,767,779) 8,829,330

Total Other Comprehensive Income For the Year, Net of Tax 131,303,338 (26,487,990)
Total Comprehensive Income For the Year, Net of Tax 960,910,523 726,961,175

The accompanying notes form an Integral Part of Financial Statements.

Damodar Paudyal y Kumar grawal Ashok K'Agrawal As per our report of even date
HOD(Accounts) CEO/Director Director Director

?wm__ &W

Praveen K. Molri
Director

Siddhartha Mohanty CA. Bishesh Cha

Chairman Partner
For KJ. & Associates

Date : 20.05.2025 Chartered Accountants
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LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows

For Period 17th July, 2023 - 15th July, 2024

(For the Year Ended Ashad, 2081)

Fig.in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Cash Flow From Operating Activities:
Cash Received

Gross Premium Recelved 18,107,497,178 17,468,014,667

Commission Received 14,912,567 15,133,162

Claim Recovery Received from Reinsurers 34,584,996 26,376,545

Realised Foreign Exchange Income other than on Cash and Cash Equivalents

Other Direct Income 240,125,879 270,526,368

Others (to be specified)

Cash Paid
Gross Benefits and Claims Paid (10,891,832,451) (8,985,500,274)
Reinsurance Premium Paid (112,085,568) (80,964,779)
‘ommission Paid (1,355,647,641) (1,477,542,312)

Service Fees Paid (143,349,526) (181,447,444)

Employee Benefits Expenses Paid (528,550,577) (467,291,950)
—Other Expenses Paid (558,358,222) (530,077,910

Others (to be specified)

Income Tax Paid (2,721,660,952) (1,813,365,719)
Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities [1] 2,085,935,673 4,243,860,354
Cash Flow From Investing Activities

Acquisitions of Intangible Assets - -

Proceeds From Sale of Intangible Assets

Acquisitions of Investment Properties

Proceeds From Sale of Investment Properties

Rental Income Received

‘Acquisitions of Property and Equipment (4,234,026) (12,750,537

Proceeds From Sale of Property and Equipment

Investment in Subsidiaries

Receipts from Sale of Investments in Subsidiaries

Tnvestment In Associates

Recelpts from Sale of Investments In Assoclates

Purchase of Equity Insttuments

Proceeds from Sale of Equity Instruments

Purchase of Mutual Funds

Proceeds from Sale of Mutual Funds

Purchase ot Freterence Shares

Proceeds from Sale of Preference Shares

Purchase of Debentures

Proceeds from Sale of Debentures

Purchase of Bonds

roceeds from Sale of Bonds

Investments in Deposits, bonds,securities (13,681,569,352) (12,132,217,271)

Maturity of Deposits

Loans Paid (331,521,3/1) (3,608,067,353)

Tnierest income from policy loan 2,094,046,048 1,566,065,585 |

Rental Income Received

Proceeds from Finance Lease

Interest Income Received 9,265,270,840 8,033,433,845

Dividend Keceived 58,863,843 85,506,41

Others (to be specified) (78,760,957) (498,376,137)|
Total Cash Flow From Investing Activities [2] (2,677,904,574) (6,266,342,151)

Qe Vo
ranay Kumar KomakAgrawal Ashok K. Agrawal

Dameodar Paudyal

HOD(Accounts) O/Director Director Director
?w,:m.— (mw-W

Praveen K. Molri Siddhartha Mohanty

Director Chairman

Date: 20.05.2025

CA.'Bis
Pariner
For KJ. & Associates
Chartered Accountants



Cash Flow From Financing Activities

Interest Paid

Proceeds From Borrowings

Repayment of Borrowings

Payment of Finance Lease

Proceeds From Issue of Share Capital

Share Issuance Cost Paid
1vidend Paid
Dividend Distribution Tax Paid -
thers {to be specified)
Total Cash Flow From Financing Activities [3] - .
Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash & Cash Equivalents [1+2+3] (591,969,305) 471,067,303
Cash & Cash Equivalents At Beginning of The Year/Period 2,449,593 817 1,978,526,514
‘Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash & Cash Equivalents At End of The Year/Period 1,857,624,512 7,449,593,817
Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash In Hand 75,588,433 72,198,624
Cheugqe in Hand 8,558,502 8,203,029
Term Deposit with Banks (with initial maturity upto 3 months) 929,824,293 1,407,630,123
Balance With Banks 843,653,284 961,562,041

1

Damodar Paudyal Pranay Kumar Komal'Agrawal
HOD(Accounts) CEQ/Director Director

-1
Praveen K. Molri Tablesh Siddhartha Mohanty
Director Directs Chairman

Date : 20.05.2025

Ashok K. Agrawal
Director

As per our report of even d.

pSSOC
)

Chartered
* \ Accountants / %

CA. Bishesh Chaudhaty’e> &
&
Partner dur v “eQ

For KJ. & Associates
Chartered Accountants




LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED
Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss
For Period 17th July, 2023 - 15th July, 2024
(Year Ended Upto Ashad 31, 2081)

Fig. in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Opening Balance in Retained Eamings 2,205,664,332 1,738,884,433
Transfer from OCI reserves to retained earning in current year
Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss 829,607,185 753,449,166
Appropriations:
i)Transfer to Insurance Fund
i) Transfer to Catastrophe Reserve (92,483,434) (66,830,951)
fii)Transfer to Capital Reserve
iv)Transfer to CSR reserve (9,248,343) (14,446,300)
v)Transfer to/from Regulatory Resetve -
vi)Transfer to Fair Value Reserve
vil)Transfer of Deferted Tax Reserve 91,702,242 (66,728,831)
vili)Transfer to OCI reserves due to change in classification
iX)Others (to be Specified)
Deductions:
i) Accumulated Fair Value Galn on each Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL
a) Equity Instruments
b) Mutual Fund ,
¢) Others (if any)
ii) Accumutated Fair Value gain on Investment Properties
lli) Accumulated Fair Value gain on Hedged Items in Fair Value Hedges
iv) Accumulated Fair Value gain on Hedging Instruments in Fair Value Hedges
v) Accumulated Fair value gain of Ineffective Portion on Cash Flow Hedges
vi)) Goodwill Recognised
vii) Unrealised Gain on fluctuation of Forelgn Exchange Currency
viii} Accumulated Share of Net Profit of Associates accounted using Equity Method included in
Investment Account
ix) Overdue loans
x) Fair value gain recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss
xi) Investment in unlisted shares as per sec 16 of Financial Directive (7,280,000) (2.,500,000)
xii) Delisted share investment or mutual fund investment
xiii) Bonus share/dividend paid -
xiv) Deduction as per Sec 17 of Financial directive (50,435,683) (53,441,335)
xiv) Deduction as per Sec 18 of Financial directive (2,682,085)
xv) Transfer from Regulatory Reserve -
Adjusted Retained Earning 2,964,844,214 2,288,386,182
Add: Transfer from Share Premium Account
Less: Amount apportioned for Assigned capital
Less: Deduction as per sec 15(1) Of Financial directive
Add/Less: Others (to be specified) 22,710,176 82,721,850
Total Distributable Profit/(loss) 2,942,134,038 2,205,664,332
B0 R ST
Damodar Paudyal Pranay Kumar Komal Xgrawal Ashok K. Agrawal As per our report of even date
HOD(Accounts) CEO/Director Director Director % Ps SOO,:? A
(W
n ~
Praveen K. Molri TableshNPan! Siddhartha Mohanty CA. Bishesh Chaudha
Director Director. Chairman Partner

For K]. & Associates
Date : 20.05.2025 Chartered Accountants




LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEFAL) LIMITED

4 Goodwill & Intangible Assets

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig.in NPR

Particulars

Softwares

Goodwill

Others
{to be
specified)

Total

Gross carrying amount

As at Shrawan 1, 2079

1,043,450

1,043,450

Additions during the year

Acquisition

Internal Development

Business Combination( to be Specified)

Disposals during the year

Revaluation/Adjustment

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2080

1,043,450

1,043,450

Additions during the year

Acquisition

Internal Development

Business Combination( to be Specified)

Disposals during the year

Revaluation/Adjustment

Balance as at Ashadh 31,2081

1,043,450

1,043,450

Accumulated amortization and impairment

As at Shrawan 1, 2079

848,758

848,758

Additions during the year

56,500

56,500

Disposals during the year

Impairment during the year

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2080

905,258

905,258

Additions during the year

40,992

40,992

Disposals during the year

Impairment during the year

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2081

946,250

946,250

Capital Work-In-Progress

As on Shrawan 1, 2079

Additions during the year

Capitalisation during the year

Disposals during the year

Impairment during the year

Balance as on Ashadh 31, 2080

Additions during the year

Capitalisation during the year

Disposals during the year

Impairment during the year

Balance as on Ashadh 31, 2081

Net Carrying Amount

As on Ashadh 32, 2080

138,192

138,192

As on Ashadh 31, 2081

97,200

97,200
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LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements
Investment Properties Fig. in NPR
Investment Properties at Cost
Particulars
Gross carrying amount
As at Shrawan 1, 2079
Additions during the year

Land Building Total

Acquisition
Subsequent Expenditure
Assets classified as held for sales
Disposals during the year
Transfer/Adjustments
Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2080 - -
Additions during the year
Acquisition
Subsequent Expenditure
Assets classified as held for sales
Disposals during the year
Transfer/Adjustments
Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2081 - -

Accumulated depreciation and impairment
As at Shrawan 1, 2079
Addition during the year

Disposals during the year

Impairment during the year

Transfer/Adjustments
Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2080 - - .

Addition during the year

Disposals during the year

Impairment during the year

Transfer/Adjustments -
Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2081 - - R

Capital Work-In-Progress

As at Shrawan 1, 2079
Additions during the year
Capitalisation during the year
Disposals during the year
Impairment during the year

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2080 - - -
Additions during the year
Capitalisation during the year

Disposals during the year
Impairment during the year
Balance as at Ashadh 31,2081 - - -

Net Carrying Amount
Net Balance As At Ashad 31, 2080 - - -
Net Balance As At Ashad 31, 2081 - - -




LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

Investment Properties
(i) Amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Rental income

Direct operating expenses from property that generated rental income

Direct operating expenses from property that didn't generated rental income

Profit from investment properties before depreciation

Depreciation charge

Profit from investment properties

(ii) Fair value of investment properties:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Land

Building

Total

Notes on Fair Value :

Company has no Investment Properties as on 2081/03/31 and also as its comparative date on 2080/03/31

(iif) Disclosure on restriction on the realisability of investment properties:

(iv) Contractual obligations:

©

Ny’

A 2{%

Fig.in NPR



.l\/\o..lx-&dd.vd {33%
069F¥5°0Z1 0ST'0YT'LT 0FSPOE'E6 oseeT’osv’sr)  Jueszso’on) 862°TUY'L 180T ‘I UPTYSY e 5V
0£C°628'8 0€£°628'8 (89°289°T6T°L0)  (889°C6T LH) suroouy aarsusypzdwio]) JYQ 0} (PAPAXD)Y/ pdTe) |
159°6£T'S8 159'6£1°GR (Z57°20£°T6) (ZH2°204°16) 507 10 1o 30 JusuIaes 03 (pApad)/padrey)
60LC4S9Z 07801981 888°F91'8 £6°689°3¥S°0LT 0SL0%TLT OFS"H0E'E6 0807 ‘T emeryg e sy
reeL 1D0S 1408 [P0k DOS 1dOS
sre[monreg
T3 SNOIABL] PLL) @l Chitty]
(S3NI[IQRT]) /51955€ XT) PALIFAP UL SPUIUDAOI
- 6€T05H'81 SONIIGer] Xe], parayacy
069 F¥5 01 SASSY XeL PIlIdjaCy
069°F¥S'0TL 0ST'0¥T’LT 05SF0£'e6 (6£2°0SH'ST) (££5°750°07) 86T°709'T oL
- $10'815°0S $10°815°0S (91 SN - Amiqer] aseap) s1PO
- T 2181 X2} U] 5o3uely
- - S9550] XEJ PasTum JO PIEMIO] ALTeD)
- - $}38SY IAPQ UO 5507 Jusuripeding
£68°654'16 L68°G5L16 SETE9EF Frgaclg §)3S5Y [BPUEUT] U0 sS07] JuauLIredun]

- §5077 /uteD) [EHTISY
806'5S°E 806'P25'E (0£8°0c2’0T) £84°1SE"9 (Z19°280°21) Amyers) 10§ vaistAoly
5965029 $96°502°9 1£6°0£6'2T 1£5°086°TL 34P] 10j UOISIACLY
WLSILET HTG1L'EL (0Z£50¥'97) (0z€v0¥"92) TDOLAS 12 51955y [EDURULY

- - TLLIAA i€ 51255V [epuRuly
(Z28°£89'%) (zz5'299'%) (0£6°9Z1°6%) (0£6°921°6¥) yawdmby pue Aradorg
- - 5355y AqUBUE] 33 [IMPOoD)
Az Arerodun] uo xe] painjag
DoSs 1408 Dos 1d0OS
moL ySnonyy, ySnonyy 0L y3nonyp yinoaqy, SIEOTIE ]
Izax SnoIAdL] 1B Judum))
WdN 1 g

SIUSWBJL)G [RIJUELT] 3] 0] SAJON
QALIATI (TVJIN) NOLLVIOJY0D HDNVUASNI 3411

(SINIMIQETT)/S1958Y XeL paiyaQ 4




Investment in Subsidiaries

LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Investment in Quoted Susidiaries

Investment in Unquoted Susidiaries

Less: Impalrment Losses

Total

Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries

. Current Year Previous Year
Particulars
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
........... Shares of ..... Rs. Eachof ....... Ltd.
........... Shares of ..... Rs. Eachof....... Lid.
Total - - - .
Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries
. Current Year Previous Year
Particulars
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Information Relating to Subsgidiaries
Particulars Percentage of Ownership
Current Year Previous Year
..Rs. EBachof......Lid,
... Rs, Bachof...... Ltd.
... Shares of .....Rs, Bachof ...... Ltd.
... Shares of .....Rs. Eachof ...... Ltd.
<

?m,un.. LCW




investment in Assoclates

LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED

Notes to the Financlal Statements

Fig in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

in Quoted A

Investment in Unquoted Assoclates

Less: Impairment Losses

Total

1 tin Quoted A Hal

Particulars

Cunrent Year

Previous Year

Cost

Falr Value

{or) Equit Method

Cost

Fair Value

(oz) Equit Method

Sharesof .....Rs. Eachof...... Ltd.

Sharesof ..... Rs. Eachof ...... Ltd.

Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier Years

Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Current Year

Total

I t in Unquoted Assodal

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Coat

Fair Value

(or) Equit Methad|

Cost

Fair Value

(or) Equit Method

Shares of ..... Rs. Eachof...... Lid.

Sharesof ..... Rs. Eachof...... Ltd.

Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier Years

Add: Share of Profit or Logs for Current Year

‘Total

T ion Relating fo A

Particulars

Cwrrent Year

Previous Year

Name

Place of Business

Accounting Method

% of Ownership

Qurrent Assets

Non-Current Assets

Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities

Income

Net Profit or Loss

Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income

Company's share of profits

Net Profit or Loss

Other Comprehensive Income

(4




LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

20 Investments

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Investments measured at Amortised Cost

96,800,469,171

83,808,526,061

i) Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions

ii) Investment in Debentures

12,355,374,117

11,655,430,000

ili) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government)

465,625,000

1,373,779,900

iv) Fixed Deposits in "A" Class Financial Institutions

79,439,170,054

67,559,016,161

v) Fixed Deposits in Infrastructure Banks

vi) Fixed Deposits in "B" Class Financial Institutions

3,840,300,000

2,880,300,000

vii) Fixed Deposits in "C" Class Financial Institutions

700,000,000

340,000,060

viii) Others ( to be Specified)

Less: Impairment Losses

Investments at FVTOCI

3,502,108,574

2,706,865,052

i) Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted)

3,313,397,788

2,606,621,869

ii) Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)

7,280,000

7,280,000

iii) Investment in Mutual Funds

181,430,786

92,963,183

iv) Investment in Debentures

v) Others ( to be Specified)

Investments at FVTPL

i) Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted)

ii) Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)

iif) Investment in Mutual Funds

iv) Investment in Debentures

v) Others ( to be Specified)

Total

100,302,577,745

86,515,391,113

a) Details of Impairment Losses

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions

Investment in Debentures

Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/NRB/Guaranteed by Nepal Government)

Fixed Deposit with"A" Class Financial Institutions

Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Banks

Fixed Deposit with"B" Class Financial Institutions

Fixed Deposit with"C" Class Financial Institutions

Others (to be Specified)

Total

b) Investments having expected maturies less than 12 months:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted)

Investment in Equity Instruments (Unguoted)

Investment in Mutual Funds

Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions

Investment in Debentures

237,689,000

Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/NRB/Guaranteed by Nepal Government)

50,000,000

908,154,900

Fixed Deposit with"A" Class Financial Institutions

12,330,000,000

4,388,000,000

Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Banks

Fixed Deposit with"B" Class Financial Institutions

110,000,000

80,000,000

Fixed Deposit with"C" Class Financial Institutions

30,000,000

90,000,000

Others (to be Specified)

Total

12,520,000,000

5,703,843,900

) Information relating to investment in equity instruments

Current Year

Previous Year

Particulars
Cost Fair Value

Cost

Fair Value

Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted)

15,030,456

Agriculture Development Bank Limited 12,193,210

12,193,210

11,928,900




Api Power Company Ltd. 2,610,509 5,510,159 1,786,209 4,059,382
Chilime Hydropower Company Limited 66,299,922 78,572,910 66,299,922 82,443,560
Citizen Bank International Limited 152,397,269 113,952,537 152,397,269 101,938,936
Citizen Investment Trust 214,823,667 214,823,667 214,823,667 214,823,667
Everest Bank Ltd, 106,530,239 112,000,000 - -
Garima Bikas Bank Ltd. 60,116,414 67,392,500 46,124,037 50,452,065
Global IME Bank Limited 113,224,966 79,143,880 101,052,899 64,001,856
Himatayan Bank Limited 36,678,554 26,298,305 36,678,554 27,405,874
Kumari Bank Limited 44,852,837 28,048,252 41,491,277 26,810,355
Kumari Bank Ltd. Promoter 21,132,300 49,210,616 21,132,300 53,800,452
Laxmi Bank Limited 88,593,955 63,621,075 72,547,185 45,369,423
Lumbini Bikas Bank Ltd. 78,777,305 83,320,000 42,267,953 42,536,522
Mahalaxmi Bikas Bank Ltd. 93,239,438 74,832,032 93,239,438 69,198,371
Nabil Bank Limited 90,028,120 136,240,000 19,001,882 37,642,343
Nepal Bank Limited 17,532,909 35,802,918 17,532,909 38,844,996
Nepal Film Development Bank Ltd. 1,540 1,540 1,540 5,236
Nepal Infrastrcuture Bank Lid. Promoter 840,000,000 1,006,992,000 840,000,000 607,200,000
Nepal Insurance Company Ltd (NICL) - 151,360 - 22,140
Nepal Investment Mega Bank Limited 33,740,135 23,177,637 24,632,808 14,315,558
Nepal Investment Mega Bank Ltd. Promoter 184,888,928 169,438,971 184,888,928 187,736,916
Nepal Lube Oil Ltd. 64,500 179,661 64,500 121,976
Nepal Reinsurance Company Ltd. Promoter 71,895,167 92,123,100 71,895,167 87,945,567
NEPAL SBI BANK LTD. (SBI) 856,342 1,130,288 856,342 1,132,802
Nepal Share Market 3,077,900 - 3,077,900 -
NLG Insurance Company Ltd. Promoter 31,612 83,200 31,612 78,900
NMB Bank Limited 123,302,033 85,047,250 109,491,577 72,348,250
Prabhu Bank Limited 126,908,740 91,081,207 126,908,740 80,953,660
Prabhu Bank Ltd. Promoter 20,093,517 13,847,900 20,093,517 15,648,127
Prime Commercial Bank Ltd, 137,405,726 85,590,180 137,405,726 70,200,195
Prime Commercial Bank Ltd. Promoter 32,056,704 87,331,000 32,056,704 97,084,468
Rara Development Bank Litd. 2,336 - 2,336 -
Sanima Bank Limited 117,582,939 132,525,000 66,100,665 65,047,371
Sanima Mai Hydropower Ltd. 13,032,423 18,672,500 13,032,423 17,750,000
Shine Resunga Development Bank Ltd. (SHINE) 38,725,040 40,510,000
Shree Investment Finance Co. Ltd. 24,938,401 25,088,000 24,938,401 19,200,000
Siddhartha Bank Limited 125,866,115 134,425,000 89,369,606 83,326,056
Soaltee Hotel Ltd - 160,888
Standard Chartered Bank Ltd 112,553,926 120,400,000
Sunrise Bank Limited - - 16,046,770 13,417,673
Sunrise Bank Ltd. Promoter 464,328 1,641,800 464,328 1,830,272
Udhyam Bikash Bank Ltd. 220 - 220 -
Yeti Development Bank Ltd. 2,070 - 2,070 -
Investment in Mutual Funds
Nabil Balanced Fund-3 3,487,352 3,586,736 - -
NIBL Growth Fund 2,390,002 3,189,297 - -
NIBL Samriddhi Fund -2 11,922,287 12,817,547 - -
NIBL Stable Fund 40,000,000 40,000,000 - -
Sunrise Bluechip Fund 4,218,373 4,336,002 - -
Sunrise Focused Equity Fund 5,211,107 5,360,120 - -
Citizen Investment Trust (Unit Scheme) 16,900,000 16,000,000 16,000,000 16,000,000
Laxmi Equity Fund 29,247,920 27,697,780 29,247,920 28,048,755
NIC Asia Balanced Fund 20,000,000 19,200,000 20,000,000 18,660,000
NIC Asia Dynamic Debt Fund- NADDF 6,648,300 6,648,300 6,648,300 6,648,300
NIC Asia Growth Fund 2 20,000,000 16,400,000 - -
NMB Hybrid Fund L-1 - - 12,619,210 13,616,128
NMB Sulay Investment Fund 2 (NMBSF2) 10,000,000 10,060,000 10,000,000 9,990,000
Sanima Large Cap Fund (SLCF) 3,533,153 4,160,759 - -
SIDDHARTHA INVESTMENT GROWTH SCHEME-2 (
SIGS2) 10,030,545 11,974,245 - -
&




Investment in Equity Instrs ts (Unquoted)

Care Ratings Nepat Ltd. Promoter 2,500,600 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000
Insurance Institute of Nepal Ltd. Promoter 4,780,000 4,780,000 4,780,000 4,780,000
Total 3,396,491,294 3,502,108,574 2,801,726,021 2,706,865,052

) The company has earmarked investments amounting to NFR 86,825,600,000 To Nepal Insurance Authority.
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LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

Other Assets

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Capital Advances

Prepaid Expenses

6,844,916.00

8,724,562

Claim Advances

Advance To Suppliers

Staff Advances

646,153.00

419,053

Printing and Stationary Stocks

Stamp Stocks

Deferred Expenses

Deferred Reinsurance Commission Expenses

Deferred Agent Commission Expenses

Lease Receivables

Others (to be specified)

i) Miscellaneous Debtors

ii) Share Application Money

1,250,000

iti) Other advances

745,76%.00

957,356

iv) Prepaid Employee Benefit

Less: Impairment Losses

Total

8,236,838

11,350,971

a) Expected to be recovered/ settled within 12 months:

Particutars

Current Year

Previous Year

Capital Advances

Prepaid Expenses

6,844,916

8,724,562

Claim Advances

Advance To Suppliers

Staff Advances

646,153

419,053

Printing and Stationary Stocks

Stamp Stocks

Deferred Expenses

Deferred Reinsurance Commission Expenses

Deferred Agent Commission Expenses

Lease Receivables

Others (to be specified)

i) Miscellaneous Debtors

ii) Share Application Money

1,250,000

iii) Other advances

745,769

957,356

iv) Prepaid Employee Benefit

Total

8,236,838

11,350,971
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16

Other Financial Assets
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Security Deposits 281,000 281,000
Accured Interest 512,912,555 487,517,479
Interest Receivable from Loan to Policyholders 2,747,606,892 2,470,422,387
Other Receivables
Other Deposits
Sundry Debtors 9,075,815 10,315,888
Others (to be Specified)
Less: Impairment Losses (461,837) (461,837),
Total 3,269,414,425 2,968,074,917
Note:
Impairment loss disclosure has been presented on section 3 (e) of notes to account
a) Expected maturies within 12 months:
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Security Deposits
Accured Interest 512,912,555.00 487,517,479.00
Interest Receivable from Loan to Policyholders 2,747,606,892.00 2,470,422,387.00
Other Receivables
Other Deposits
Sundry Debtors 9,075,815.00 10,315,868.00
Other ( to be Specified)
Total 3,269,595,262 2,968,255,754
Cash and Cash Equivalent
Particulars Current Year Previocus Year
Cash in Hand 75,588,433.00 72,198,624
Cheque in Hand
Bank Balances
i) Balance With"A" Class Financial Institutions 797,397,708 908,810,640
ii) Balance With Infrastructure Banks
iii) Balance With"B" Class Financial Institutions 44,814,526 51,325,352
iv) Balance With"C" Class Financial Institutions 1,441,050 1,426,049
Less: Impairment Losses
Deposit with initial maturity upto 3 months 929,824,293 1,407,630,123
Others (Cheque deposited but credit not received) 8,558,502 8,203,029
Less: Impairment Losses
Total 1,857,624,512 2,449,593,817
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LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

Share Capital

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Ordinary Shares

As at Shrawan 1, 2080

2,653,200,000

2,653,200,000

Additions during the year

i) Bonus Share Issue

i) Share Issue

As at Ashadh 31,2081

Convertible Preference Shares (Equity Component only)

As at Shrawan 1, 2080

Additions during the year

As at Ashadh 31,2081

Irredeemable Preference Shares (Equity Component only)

As at Shrawan 1, 2080

Additions during the year

As at Ashadh 31,2081

Total

2,653,200,000

2,653,200,000

Ozdinary Shares

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Authorised Capital:

26,532,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100/~ each

2,653,200,000

2,653,200,000

Issued Capital:

26,532,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100/~ each

2,653,200,000

2,653,200,000

Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:

26,532,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100/- each

2,653,200,000

2,653,200,000

Total

2,653,200,000

2,653,200,000.00

Preference Share Capital

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Authorised Capital:

+erere Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each

frred ble Prefi Shares of Rs. XXX Each

Issued Capital:

.o Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each

.......Jrredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each

Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:

... Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each

\vemndrredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each

Total

Shareholding Structure of Share Capital

Number of Shares

Percentage

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Promoters

Government of Nepal

Nepall Organized Institutions

3,979,800.00

3,979,800.00

15%

15.00%

Nepali Citizens

Foreigners

14,592,600.00

14,592,600.00

55%

55.00%

Others ( to be Specified)

‘Total (A)

18,572,400.00

18,572,400.00

70%

70%

Other than Promoters

General Public

7,959,600.00

7,959,600.00

30%

30%

Others (to be Specified)

Total (B)

7,959,600.00

7,959,600.00

30%

Total{A+B)

26,532,000.00

26,532,000.00

100%

100%

Details of shareholders holding 1% or more than 1% of the aggregate shares in the Company:

Number of Shares

Percentage

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Life Insurance Corporation Of India

14,592,600.00

14,592,600

55.00%

55.00%

Vishal Group ( Nepal)

3,979,800.00

3,979,800

15.00%,

15.00%




LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

17 (b} Share Application Money Pending Allotment

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Share Application Money Pending Allotment

Total

17(c) Share Premium

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

As on Shrawan 1, 2080

61,151,801

61,151,801

Increase due to issue of shares at premium

Decrease due to issue of bonus shares

Transaction costs on issue of share

Others ( to be Specified)

As on Ashadh 31, 2081

61,151,801

61,151,801

17 (d) Catastrophe Reserves

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

As on Shrawan 1, 2080

561,598,449

494,767,497

Additions

92,483,434

66,830,951

Utilizations

As on Ashadh 31, 2081

654,081,882

561,598,449

17 (¢} Retained Earnings

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

As on Shrawan 1, 2080

2,344,327,517

1,738,884,433

Prior Period Adjustment

Net Profit or Loss

829,607,185

753,449,166

Ttems of OCI recognised directly in retained earnings

Remeasurement of Post-Employment Benefit Obligations

Transfer to reserves

Revaluation Reserves

Capital Reserves

Catastrophe Reserves

(92,483434)

(66,830,951)

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Reserves

(9,245,343)

(14,446,300)

Insurance Fund

Fair Value Reserves

Actuarial Reserves

Deferred Tax Reserve

91,702,242

(66.728,831)

Regulatory Reserve

Other Reserve(to be specified)

Teansfer of Depreciation on Revaluation of Property and Equipment

Transfer of Disposal of Revalued Property and Equipment

Transfer of Disposal of Equity Instruments Measured at FVTOCI

Issue of Bonus Shares

Transaction costs on issue of Shares

Dividend Pald

Dividend Distribution Tax

Transfer to Insurance Contract Liabllity

Transfer From Regulatory Reserve

As on Ashacdh 31, 2081

3,163,905,167

2,344,327,517

17(f) Other Equity

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Revaluation Reserves

Capital Reserves

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Reserves

23,694,644

14,446,300

Insurance Fund

Fair Value Reserves

7,921,296

(71,145,726)

Actuarlal Reserves

(30,631 472)

(11,576,123)

Deferred Tax Reserve

1,602,298

93,304,540

Regulatory Reserve

331,031,641

331,031,641

Total

333,618,407

356,060,631
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Provisions

LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEFAL) LIMITED

Notes to the Financlal Statements

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Provision far employee benefits

i) Provision for Leave

51,722,284

34,732,802

ii) Provision for Gratuity

42,923,318

iii)Termination Benefits

1v) Other Employee Benefit obligations (to be Specified)

Provision for tax related lega! cases

Provision for non-tax related legal cases

Provision for employee training

4,189,668

Total

98,835,270.00

34,732,802.00

Agsets

{a) Movement of Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and C:

Description

Opening
Balance

Additions
Duzing the Year

Utilised
During the Year

Reversed
During the
Year

Unwinding of
Discount

Closing Balance

Provislon for employee benefits

i) Provision for Leave

34,732,802.00

27,500,846.00

10,511,364.00

51,722,234.00

ii) Provislon for Gratuity

42,273,608.00

7,791,468.00

34,482,140.00

iil)Termination Benefits

iv) Other Employee Benefit obligations (to be Specified)

Provision for tax related legal cases

Provision for non-tax related legal cases

Others( to be Spedified)

(b) Provision with expected payouts within 12 months

Particulars

Current Year

Previons Year

Provision for employee benefits

i) Provision for Leave

10,511,364

954,639

ii) Provision for Gratuity

7,791,468

1il) Termination Benefits

iv) Other empleyee benefit obligations( 1o be Spedfied)

Provision for tax related legal cases

Provision for non-tax related legal cases

Others (to be Specified)




LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

19 Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Life Insurance Fund a8 per Actuary Report (19.1)

119,227,067,313

105,957,963,504

Claim Payment Reserve including IBNR (19.2)

406,730,691

352,334,706

Transfer from:

Fair Value Reserve

Actuarial Reserve

Revaluation Reserve

Other Reserve

Net gain on fair value changes on FVTPL instruments

Fair Value Gain on Investment Properties

Share of Profit of Assoclates accounted as per Equity Method

Share of Other Comprehensive Income of Assoclates Accounted for using the Equity Method

Total

119,633,798,005

106,340,298,210

The valuation of the technical provision of Insurance Company is carried out as at July 15, 2024 in accordance with the Risk Based Capital and Solvency
Directive, 2022 (2078) (“RBC Directive”) and circular: Regarding Risk Based Capital and solvency Direction, 2022 (2078) (“RBC Circular”) issued by

Nepal Insurance Authority (“NIA")

Freaws e Lecasnmo A \Q4\/
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LIFE INSURANCE CORFORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

20 Insurance Payable

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Payable to Reinsurer

85,613,711

29,463,461

Payable to other Insurance Companies

Othets (to be Specified)

Total

85,613,711

29,463,461

Payable within 12 months:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Payable to Reinsurer

85,613,711

29,463,461

Payable to other Insurance Companies

Others (to be Specified)

Total

85,613,711

29,463,461

21 Current Tax Assets/(Liabilities) (Net)

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Income Tax Liabilities

(112,573,584)

Income Tax Assets

276,532,369

Total

276,532,369

(112,573,584)

22 Borrowings

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Bonds

Debentures

Term Loans-Bank and Financial Institution

Bank Overdrafts

Others (to be Specified)

Total

Payable within 12 months:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Bonds

Debentures

Term Loans-Bank and Financial Institution

Bank Overdrafts

Others (to be Specified)

Total




LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

23 Other Liabilities

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

TDS Payable 107,851,611 96,339,305

Unidentified deposits 121,413,560 85,934,021

Advance Premiums 25,858,070 57,210,286

Insurance Service Fee Payable 135,964,496 144,348,435

Lease Liability 202,072,056 209,431,904

Deferred Reinsurance Commission Income

Deferred Income

Othets(to be specified) -

Total 593,165,793 596,263,951

Payable within 12 months Fig. in NPR

Farticulars Current Year Previous Year

TDS Payable 107,851,611.00 96,339,305.00

Unidentified deposits 121,415,560.00 §8,934,021.00

Advance Premiums 25,858,070.00 57,210,286.00

Insurance Service Fee Payable 135,964,496.00 144,248,435.00

Lease Liability 7,359,847.85 -

Deferred Reinsurance Cammission Income

Deferred Income

Otbers(to be specified)

Total 398,453,585 386,832,047
24 Other Financlal Liabilities

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Redecmable Preference Shares

Irredemable Cumulative P Shares

Refundable Share Application Money .

Payable to Agents 267,360,197 228,781,741

Sundry Creditors - 233,209,811 392,369,716

Retention and deposits

Short-term employee benefits payable

i) Salary Payables 11,471,063 10,995,284

1) Banus Payables 128,522,091 184,649,017

1ii) Other employee benefit payable {Gratuity) °

Audit Fees Payable 1,358,767 2417819

Actuarial Fees Payable

Dividend Payable

Others (o be specified)

i) Cheque issued But Not Encashed 443,597,259 §22,125,191

ii) Medical Fee Payable

Total 1,085,519,188 1,341,338,768

Payable within 12 months

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Redeemable Preference Shares

Irredemable O ive Prefi e Shares

Refundable Share Application Money

Payable to Agents 267,360,157 228,781,741

Sundry Creditors. 233,209,811 392,369,716

Retention and deposils

Short-term employee benefits payable

i) Salary Payables 11,471,063 10,995,284

ii) Bonus Payables 128,522,091 184,649,017

i) Other employee benefit payable ( to be Specified)

Audit Fees Payable 1,358,767 2,417,819

Actuarial Fees Payable

Dividend Payable

Others (tobe specified)

1) Cheque issued But Not Encashed 443,597,259 522,125,191

ii) Medical Fee Payable -

Total 1,085,519,188 1,341,338,768

o F




& -~y
[ A SLY L6V LDT'SL LDT'9ST'T0T THT'SB6'EST TOLTH6 T80'ST LLV'9BLT0S'ST [ A 5 6EVSTLOSET ™oL
£6V'TV8'9 BLOZ01L €6P°THE'D [ - 05L'€ - - SOURMSUT WD I OO
- 9£8'65F 11T - SETEEHLIT - - (g Vo) umpBI S{Hus usuImopuy
PLLCIVPE ST YLLELY TG STV TY - - - UMl UG TUSWMOPUZ
ST 01£°2LTT - - LIEBEVT 186°2L1°T LBVEIE 62€'6 £omog s epadg
831'S00'8 1292606 - 696°S6Y'S 9956102 664605 S50'E10' Aofjod Bdumansu] w3l
O2E1LIFEET TLFESIFET'T - - WE' LYY TIEL VOL'E6LT8TY 6T0°085°1T 891'998°L1 Ao110d 93] 20UM.
ELEEPSTILS STEFISII6'S - £C6'9TFLITS SERTIUEIT'S 948'91L'YP9 0£9'§¥¥'L99 IRLIMOPUT] PIGIPON
- - (724 wN) wewmopiy pajedpruy
OEI'ESL69ET 951°C18°049°C - SSI'PEE'6C6'T BL1°261'ST1T SL6'RIYOTH LL6'S19'ESS Mauimopuy paredpnuy
T6Y'L0E08L 612087081 (1ed UON]) JuRULMOPUZ
TOU'STE THE'L 061'8E0'648°L - 989'FF1'3E99 OV 1ST'96'D 90£ 1862071 $8L'9BECE6 JuBILMOpUY
Tea ) MoAdlg Jeax Juaunyy hﬂu\r snopadLgy .—du&. a-u.-.HHU Teax I-.—ﬂ_b?-ﬁ el aam) wax n-su.?uuq— IR u.-v.-h-—U
wnpmalg PATQ 0L w1y 33Ul WnNEIL] MU wrpuas reaK 821 srponRey
TN UWHITA $S0ID)
0BV L90°0LY' LT SLV'L6Y'LOT'RL - - - 08¥'L90°0LY'LT SLT'LEV'LOT'BL oL
6TV 820°201'1 - - - £6V'THE'9 $20°201'1 2UEINSUT U3 | O
- SER'ESKIIZ - 9EF'6SH 11T (124 uON) UMpUIBT] S[FMS ISTMOPUR
PILEIF6 YT P - YLUEIV'PS SPUTTV IV WMALRI 3{SUG WOUIMOPUy
981187 [ITx7%44 - - vor'1182T IEUTT Lfiod w3, eRdg
8R1'G00'8 1T9TE0'6 - $81'500'8 1292606 Adpod soueInsu] uERL
0LC'TL1¥BE'T 28’689 VLT - - - QELLTHET 28'659 1L fyi04 311 2I4M
6S'EVETIL'S STS'FRE916'S - - - 6TSEVETILE CTSYBSII6S UIUMOPUE PIYIPOW
. s B - - {red uop) woumepuy patedpguy
OE1'6SL'69€°T 951°¢18°0£9°C - - CEI'ESL'69ET 96T'EI80L9T Wawmmopuy pajedotuy
- T6V'L0E°08L - - T6V'LOC 0L (e voN) @wMmepUR
TOU'RSINEL 061'859°6£8°/ - - - 261'92S 1H'L 061'S58°6L8'L JURUIMOpUY
eax ug?eounm JEag juauny FEIX SRO1AILY IR JUIINT T3 SNOLASLY ELL) uEU Te3Ix Evaun— TESX Juun)
WDREIA] pAUrLe] sIous) wanpuaL] pawreaun i sFuery) ssoxs) PpAdany BUEmanIY Uo wapEILy WTEIL] P211(] SR
AN urSiy SUMIaz] paurey ss015

SUAWNES [FPUTULT 34} 0} SN

QALINTT (IVIAN) NOLLVIOJEOD IDNVUNSNI 3411

ST

s



<
050°809 1TV LL 019 ITFS66°LT O0TY'65VBY 895°S80°TTL 0S¥ L900LY'LT SLUL6¥ LIT'8L moL
C6¥'TIE'9 SIVLEN'T - £19'69 E6YTHE'9 STOLOT'T NEINSUL ULIS | 0L
UE'RETIT PSY0EL - HYEEVTIT (sed UON) wmnwazg 2durg uIUmOpuy
EI'69T'¥6 [t 1SHYPE L£65'6L PLEEIP'RE Lidradid umnuaig PuIS NRWMmMopug
P6'4BL'T L9E'ERTT €T6'ET £V6'8T ¥98'TI8T OLE2LTT Logog wis epads
OYYEIS'L 9LLTBL'S 8vs'16¥ S06'6+8 881'500'8 1292606 LOyjog ouEInsu] W]
1Z9's8r ILET 86£L6TT8LT 674’8971 PLOTIETL 0LE'LLLY8E'L 7286997611 5004 33T1 2UM
6T EFSTHL'S TETALLEL8'S ¥6€°S08°TY 6TS'EVSTOL'S STS'¥ES'916'S ndwmopug palipop
[44] UL - - (r2d woNy) wawmopug paredppuy
69T'T6TISET YIY6L6'RF9T 198°65'E1 TES'E68'1T 0E1'eSL'69€T SST'EIS'QLYT WawmOpUd patedpnuy
004"2£0°08E TEL'VET - [ (xed W) uamopuy
TOETL'618'L SH0'B0TIEL ESHESY' 1T STI'0E9'EE T61'92S 1182 061°96T'6L8'L WIWMopuy

JEAX ng—Dﬁu& AEDX PIILMY Je3x SNOIANY eax juaum) IR FIOTAI L] AL LN
wnpuar] paureg 13N PIPID WnLWILY WApWILg pIUIEF $9015) VEMIRTEL
Tmpmaag pavres 13N 30 [T SLM-OnopR0g
6LL'FI6'08 895'SR0ZIL 6LLT96°08 895°980°ZTT ®og,
6V6'25 €19°69 6V6'L92 £19'69 BIURITISY UHD], QLS
POYOEL ¥9¥'0€1 (o4 woN)) winjuaig 218ulg uPwMOpUY
TSH¥P1 L65'64 ISY'rv1 £65°6L wnpuag 918ug wawmepuy
€TH'ET £76'5T €T6°CT £V6'ST KLopog uia] epadg
LielGd S06°6V8 8616V €06'6Y8 £5q104 avveInsug uesy,
6VL'S8TL YL0THETL 69L'S89°TL $2L0°T5€TL Aonod 33 aroum
Ol¥'Z€7°2€ F6E'SOR'TR OUF'LETZE ¥6£°608°TH WRWMOPUT PIYTPOIN
aI'T - 6211 {1e] uoN)) uswmopug pardppuy
198'65¥°€1 TES'TONIT 198°65¥E1 TE5'068'1C uBwWamopug paedpnuy
T6LHET T6LVET {1ed WON) Junnmopug
BRR'ESY 1T STI'0E9'EE 888°ESY 1T STI'0E9'EE JUBMOPA
R3] sn01ASLY JRAX UMD dRAL SNOfAIL] TeJX JuILm) TED ) SMOAIL] uﬂuﬁ u-uUhH——U
M, eneg
Papa0 R paureaun; uy 33uey) uo.“ﬂ:m 8, 39meuy i 1 0L PP WM "

Papa) summralg

9z

9z



27

28

29

LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED
Notes to the Pinancial Statements

Commission Income Figin NPR
Particulars Reinsurance Commission Profit Commission Total Commission Income
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Endowment 3,100,211 4,148,359 3,100,211 4,148,359
Endowment (Non Par) 109,007 109,007 -
Antidpated Endowment 2,844,629 2,028,654 2,844,629 2,028,654
Antidpated Endowment (Non Par) - -
Modified Endowment 7,254,610 6,659,053 7,254,610 6,659,053
Whole Life Policy 1,422,886 2,165,144 1,422,886 2,165,144
Term Insurance Policy 147,213 111,618 147,213 111,618
Special Term Policy 2,652 4,449 2,652 1,449
Endowment Single Premium 1,909 8,610 1,909 8,610
Endowment Single Premium (Non Par) 25,249 - 25,249 -
Micro Term insurance 4,201 7,235 4,201 7,235
Total 14,912,567 15,133,162 - - 14,912,567 15,133,162
Other Direct Income
! Other Direct Income Late Fee Total Other Direct Income
Particulars
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year Cuzrent Year Previous Year
Endowrment 100,008,545 115,130,073 100,008,545 115,130,073
Endowment (Non Par) 527 527
Antidlpated Endowment 35,856,149 34,130,266 35,856,149 34,130,266
Anticipated Endowment (Non Par) - -
Modifled Endowment 80,343,507 88,697,293 80,343,507 88,697,293
Whole Life Policy 23,875,494 32,509,430 23,879,494 32,509,430
Term Insurance Policy 11,556 17,789 11,556 17,789
Spedal Term Policy 26,101 41,517 26,101 41,517
Endowment Single Premium - - - -
Endowment Single Premium (Non Par) - - - -
Micre Term insurance - - - -
Total 240,125,879 270,526,368 - - 240,125,879 270,526,368
Income from Investments and Loans
Particulats Current Year Pravious Year
Interest Incorne from Financial Assets Designated at Amortised Costs
1) Fixed Deposit with "A" Class Finandal Institutions 7,573,062,190 6,689,596,267
ii) Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Bank
li) Fixed Deposit with "B" Class Financial Institutions 350,115,493 279,321,283
iv) Fixed Deposit with "C" Class Financial Institutions 53,707,054 37,172,381
v) Debentures 1,165,005,170 1,022,363,654
vi) Bonds (Nepal G / NRB/ Gu d by Nepal Government) 101,094,672 71,256,726
vii) Bank Deposlts other than Fixed Deposit 21,233,409 35,428,843
viii) Agent Loans
ix) Employee Loans
x) Other Interest Incorme (to be Specified) 14,947,312 15,679,770
Financial Assets Measured at FVTOCI
i) Interest Income on Debentures
ii) Dividend Income 56,863,843 104,105,901
i) Other Interest Income { to be specified)
iv) Realised Galns/ (Losses) on Derecogrition of Financial Assets Measured at FVTOCI
Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL
i) Interest Income on Debenlures
i} Dividend Income
i) Other Interest Income (o be specified)
Rental Income
Others 11,500,616 9,517,045
Total 9,349,529,753 8,264,441,870
Ticavesan LetasanmoA— W
o




LYFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

30  Net Gain/(Loss) on Fair Value Changes Fig.in NPR

Particulars Cunrent Year Previous Year

Changes in Fair Value of Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL
i) Equity Instruments -
ii) Mutual Fund -
iii) Others (to be specified) -

Changes in Fair Value on Investment Properties

Changes in Fair Value on Hedged Items in Fair Value Hedges -

Changes in Fair Value on Hedging Instruments in Fair Value Hedges -

Other (to be Specified) -

Total

31  NetRealised Gains/(Losses)

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Realised Gain/(Losses) on Derecognition of Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL
i) Equity Instruments
ii) Mutual Fund - -
iii) Debentures -
iv) Others (to be specified) -
Realised Gain/(Losses) on Derecognition of Financial Assets at Amortised Costs - -
i) Debentures
ii) Bonds -
- | iif) Others (to be specified) - -
Total - -

32 Other Income

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Unwinding of discount on Finandial Assets at Amortised Cost
i) Employee Loan
ii) Bonds
iii) Others (to be Specified) - -
Foreign Exchange Income

Interest Income from Finance Lease
Amortigzation of Deferred Income -

Profit from disposal of Property and Equipment 150,882 154,355
Amortization of Deferred Income - -
Stamp Income - -
Provision For Loss on Loan Written Back - -
Others - -

Total 150,882 154,355
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LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED

Change in Insurance Contract Liabilities

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig.in NPR

Gross Change in Insurance Contract

Change in Reinsurance Assets

Net Change in Insurance Contract

Particulars Liabilities Liabilities
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Endowment 5,999,341,686 6,306,296,231 5,999,341,686 6,306,296,231
Anticipated Endowment 816,872,280 547,704,561 816,872,280 547,704,561
Modified Endowment 5,344,123,151 6,195,279,826 5,344,123,151 6,195,279,826
Whole Life Policy 849,167,507 741,946,682 849,167,507 741,946,682
Term Insurance Policy 343,949 1,561,073 343,949 1,561,073
Special Term Policy 5,356,725 1,146,443 5,356,725 1,146,443
Endowment Single Premium 32,577,358 25,996,906 32,577,358 25,996,906
Endowment Single Premium 179,541,557 217,408 179,541,557 217,408
(Non Par)

Micro Term i e (5,116,082) 92,000 {5,116,082) 92,000
Total 13,222,208,131 13,820,241,131 - 13,222,208,131 13,820,241,131
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LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

Employee Benefits Expenses Fig.in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Salaries 132,489,971 117,501,458
Allowances 115,142,966 98,364,654
Festival Allowances 13,797,708 13,378,568
Defined Benefit Plans

i) Gratuity 19,545,436 12,035,739

ii) Others (to be Specified) - -
Defined Contribution Plans

i) Provident Fund/ Social Security Fund 14,007,475 12,142,739

ii) Others ( to be specified) - -
Leave Encashments 27,500,846 16,603,961
Termination Benefits - -
Training Expenses 5,923,625 1,403,738
Uniform Expenses - -
Medical Expenses 4,735,523 4,521,914
Insurance Expenses 2,087,676 1,766,582
Recruitment Expenses 3,000 8,500
Wages 21,036,036 18,453,405
Sub-Total 356,270,262 296,181,258
Employees Bonus 116,153,389 86,446,431
Total 472,423,651 382,627,689
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Amortization of Goodwill & Intangible Assets (Refer Note. 4) 40,992 56,500
Depreciation on Property and Equipment (Refer Note.5) 54,255,043 55,136,290
Depreciation on Investment Properties (Refer Note. 6) - -
Total 54,296,035 55,192,790
Impairment Losses
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Impairment Losses on Property and Equipment, Investment
Properties, Goodwill & Intangible Assets

i} Property and Equipment

il) Investment properties

iii) Goodwill & Intangible Assets

Impairment Losses on Financial Assets

i) Investments

ii) Loans

12,080,571

iif) Other Financial Assets

iv) Cash and Cash Equivalents

v) Others ( to be Specified)

Impairment Losses on Other Assets

i) Reinsurance Assets

ii) Insurance Receivables

iii) Lease Receivables

iv) Others (to be Specified)

Total

12,080,571




LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

41  Other Operating Expenses Fig:in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Rent Expenses 27,225 -
Electricity and Water 4,878,150 4,494,754
Repair & Maintenance
i) Building 25,524 59,112
ii) Vehicle 1,106,116 1,626,369
iii) Office Equipments 1,802,859 2,068,834
iv) Others(to be Specified) 89,917 164,113
Telephone & Communication 5,313,853 5,927,429
Printing & Stationary 15,766,608 21,237,707
Office Consumable Expenses 210,494 264,523
Travelling Expenses
i) Domestic 1,584,236 3,533,312
ii) Foreign 764,574 1,018,486
Transportation Expenses 8,526,190 8,675,324
Agents Training 6,829,814 7,477,254
Agents Others 407,462,216 371,694,043
Insurance Premium 1,990,603 3,329,772
Security and Outsourcing Expenses 1,248,995 1,388,060
Legal and Consulting Expenses 375,000 691,250
Newspapers, Books and Periodicals 199,431 222,118
Advertisement & Promotion Expenses 13,055,593 17,865,099
Business Promotion 8,639,709 20,789,758
Guest Entertainment 103,510 456,136
Gift and Donations 473,778 575,703
Board Meeting Fees and Expenses
i) Meeting Allowances 714,000 691,000
ii) Other Allowances 499,255 783,418
Other Committee/ Sub-committee Expenses '

i) Meeting Allowances 270,000 265,000
ii) Other Allowances - -
General Meeting Expenses 1,062,028 210,801
Actuarial Service Fee 4,496,150 8,734,894
Other Actuarial Expenses - -
Audit Related Expenses - -
i) Statutory Audit 1,570,700 1,740,200
ii) Tax Audit - -
iif) Long Form Audit Report - -
iv) Other Fees - -
v) Internal Audit 988,185 988,185
vi) Others (to be Specified) 622,478 469,996

-

NN
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Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Bank Charges 494,542 375,553
Fee and Charges 12,471,765 12,698,356
Postage Charges 1,079,177 1,195,720
Foreign Exchange Losses

Others

i) Written Off Expenses (Fixed Assets) - -
ii) Documents Digitalisation Expenses 14,989,976 4,218,411
ili) Actuarial Service Fee - -
iv)Staff refreshment Expenses 5,188,947 5,511,565
v) Office Upkeep and Cleaning Expenses 5,113,794 5,172,418
vi) Conference Expenses (Admin) 1,637,069 -
vii) Conference Expenses (Marketing) - -
viii) Other Miscellaneous Expenses 4,584,553 6,363,051
ix) Battery Expenses For Inverter - 154,840
x) Information Publication Expenses 509,875 217,423
xi) Office Shifting Expenses - 80,230
xii) Rates & Taxes (Vehicles) 1,070,540 1,090,675
xiii) License Renewal Fee (Beema Samiti) - 50,000
xiv) Building Committee Meeting Fee 45,000 30,000
xv) Municipality Tax 1,058,220 3,420,470
xvi) Loan Written OFf 28,782 423,524
xvii) Share Related Expenses 1,366,429 1,633,024
xviii) Fine & Penalties - -
xx) Medical Expenses - -
Others (to be Specified) - -
Sub-Total 540,335,860 530,077,910
Medical examination fee 5,978,906 6,686,190
Fines, interest, Late Fees and Penalties 12,043,456 196,788,169
Total 558,358,222 733,552,269
Finance Cost

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Unwinding of discount on Provisions - -
Unwinding of discount on Financial Liabilities at

Amortised Costs i i
Interest Expenses - Bonds - -
Interest Expenses - Debentures - -
Interest Expenses - Term Loans - -
Interest Expenses - Leases 20,546,728 23,918,512
Interest Expenses - Overdraft Loans - -
Others (to be Specified) - -
Total 20,546,728 23,918,512
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(a)

LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

Income Tax Expense

Income Tax Expense

Fig.in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Tax

i) Income Tax Expenses for the Year

2,332,555,009

2,070,202,757

ii) Income Tax Relating to Prior Periods

Deferred Tax For The Year

i) Originating and reversal of temporary differences

95,227,150

(85,139,651)

ii) Changes in tax rate

ili) Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses

iv) Write-down or reversal

v) Others ( to be Specified)

Income Tax Expense

2,427,782,159

1,985,063,106




LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
Fig. in NFR
44 Emplayee Retirement Benefits

) Post Employment Benefit - Defined Contribution Plans
For the year ended Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024 ) the pany has recognised an t of NPR 14,007,475 as an expenses under the defined

contribution plans in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

b) Post Employment Benefit - Defined Benefit Plans
For Defined Benefit Plans the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method with Actuarial Valuations being carried out.

¢} Total Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Prefit or Loss

Particalars Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Current service cost 11,099,307 8,256,631

Past service cost - -

Net interest cost (a-b) 8,446,129 6,928,917

a. Interest expense on defined benefit obligation (DBO) 8,446,129 6,928,917

b. Interest {income) on plan assets - -

IDefined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit or Loss 19,545,436 15,185,548 - -

dR t effects recognised in Stat t of Other Comprehensive I [(o]w]}

particalars Employee Benefit mn Any Other Funded Liability
Cutrent Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

a. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to financial assumption changes in DBO -

b. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to experience on DBO -

. Return on plan assets (greater)/ less than di rate -

Total actuarial (gain)/ loss included in OCI - - - -

¢} Total cost recognised in Comprehensive I

Particulars Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Lial;ih_'T
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previgus Year

Cost gnised In Statement of Profit or Loss 19,545,436 15,185,548

R effects recognised in OCL - -

 Total cost recognised in Comprehensive I 19,545,436 15,185,548 - -

) Change in Defined Benefit Obligation

e articalars Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year £8,357,026 77,654,640.00

Service cost 8,256,631 8,256,631.00

Interest cost 6,928,917 6,928,917.00

Benefit payments from plan assets {1,333,353)}- 1,333,353.00

Actuarial (galn)/ loss - financial assumptions - -

Actuarial {gain)/ Loss - experience {3.145,809)}- 3,149,809.00 '

Defined Benefit Obligation as at Year End 99,059,412 88,357,026 - -

® Change in Fair Value Of Plan Assets

Particulars Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Fair value of plan assets at end of prior year 81,815,183.00 55,220,350.00

Interest Income 5,522,035.00 5,522,035.00

Expected return on plan assets - -

Employer contributions 22,434,290.00 22,434,250.00

Participant contributions - -

Benefit payments from plan assets . 1,333,353.00 }- 1,333,353.00

Transfer in/ transfer out

Actuarial galn/ (loss) on plan assets - 28,139.00 |- 28,139.00

Fairvalue of Plan Assets as at Year End 108,410,016 81,815,183 - -




LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPR
44 Emplayee Retirement Benefils
h) Net Defined Benefit Asset/(Liability}
Particul Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Punded Liability
articulars Current Year Previous Year Cuzrent Year Previous Year
Defined Benefit Obligation 122,839,166 99,059,412 - -
Fair Value of Plan Assets (79,915,848) 108,410,016 - -
Liability/ (Asset) Recognised in Stat t of Fi ial Positi 42,923,318 207,469,428 - -
i) Expected Company Contributions for the Next Year
Particulars Employee Benefit Ifllll Any Other Funded Li.:bilily
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
|Expected company contributions for the next year
) Reconciliation of ts in St t of Financial Positi
Benefit Pl. d Liabili
Particalars Employee Benefit i an Any Othet Funde: 2
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Net defined benefit liability/(asset) at prior year end 185,811,674 172,235,175
Defined benefit cost included in Stals t of Profit or Loss (19,545,436) (8,857,791)
Total wrements included In OCI - .
Acquisition/ divestment - -
Employer contributions 22,434,290.00 22,434,290.00
Net defined benefit liability/asset) 188,700,528 185,811,674 - -
K) Recondiliation of Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
T v Tianin
Particulars Employee Benafit Plan Any Other Funded ?hl]ll‘y
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Cumulative OCI - (I )/Loss beginning of period -
 Total remeasurements included in OCI -
Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss - - - .
1) Current/Non - Current Liability
Pasticulars Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Current Lisbility 4,955,200 7,350,474.00
Non - Current Liability 117,883,966 81,006,552
Total 122,839,166 88,357,026 - -
m) Expected Future Benefit Payments
Particulars Employee Benefit ljlan Any Other Funded Lu}lnlnty
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Within 1 year 5,173,381 7,709,242
|Between 1-2 years 12,357,616 3,366,775
[Between 2-5 years 14,911,065 14,064,335
From 6 to 10 356,410,488 310,541,003
Total 388,852,550 335,681,355 - -
n) Plan assets
Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability
Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
(% Invested) (% Invested) (% Invested) (% Invested)
(Government Securities (Central and State) 0% 0%
(Corporate Bonds (including Public Sector bonds) 0% 0%
Mutual Funds 0% 0%
Deposits 0% 0%
Cash and bank balances 0% 0%
Others {to be Specified) 100% 100%
Total 100% 100% - -

,ﬁy\n\}




LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig.in NPR
44 Employee Retirement Benefils
o) Sensitivity Analysis '
Particulars Employee Benefit lflan Any Other Funded Lnfbilny
Current Year Previous Year Carrent Year Previous Year
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1% Increase in Discount Rate 111,357,386 80,057,746.00
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Drie to 1% Decrease in Discount Rate 136,211,521 98,053,485.00
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1% Increase in Salary 134,502,050 98,362,758.00
Escalation Rate
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1% Dx in Salary 110,938,768 79,682,999.00
[Escalation Rate
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1% Increase in Attrition Rate 122,530423 88,821,130.00
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1% Decrease in Attrition Rate 123,026,251.00 87,700,393.00
p) Assumptions
Particulars Employee Benefit | Any Other Funded
Plan Liability
Discount Rate 9%
Escalation Rate (Rate of Increase in Comp Lavels) 6%
Attrition Rate (Employee Turnover) 4.50%
Mortality Rate During Employment NALM-2009
:Fw O LZ(»Q’W
)
<«




LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

45 Fair Value Measurements
(i) Financial Instruments by Category & Hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the Far Values of the Finandal Instruments

at Amortised Cost and for which Fair Values are disclosed in the Financial Statements.

that are {a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured

. Level Current Year Previous Year
Particulars FVTFL FVOCE Amortised Cost |FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Cost
i) in Equity Instruments - - -
Investment In Equity (Quoted) 1 N 2,622,621,869 2,622,621,869
[nvestment in Equity (Unquoted) 3 - 7,280,000 7,280,000
ii) Investment in Mutual Funds 1 - 76,963,183 76,963,183
iii)y Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and - - -
Financial Institutions
iv) Investment in Debentures. 3 - 11,655,430,000 - 11,655,430,000
v) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ 3 - 1,373,779,900 - 1,373,779,900
NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government)
vi) Fixed Deposits 3 - 70,779,316,161 - 70,779,316,161
vii) Others (to be specified) - - - -, -
Loans 3 - 21,882,162,802 21,882,162,802
(Qther Financlal Assets 3 - 2,968,074,917 - 2,968,074,917
(Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 - 2,449,593,817 2,449,593,817
Total Financial Assets - 2,706,865,052 | 111,108,357,597 - 2,706,865,052 111,108,357,597
Borrowings - - -
Other Financial Liabilities 3 1,341,338,768 1,341,338,768
Total Financial Liabilities - - 1,341,338,768 - - 1341338,768

Level 1: Level 1 Hierarchy Includes Finandial Instruments measured using Quoted Prices.

Level 2: Fair Value of Finandal Instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximises the use of observable market data and rely

Level 3; If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included inLevel 3.

Thete i no transfer of Financial Instruments between different levels as mentioned above during the year.

(if) Valuation Technigue Used to Determine Fair Value
a) Use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments

b) Fair Value of remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis

(iii) Valuation Process

The finance and accounts department of the Company performs the valuation of financial assets and liabilitles required for financlal reporting purposes. Discussion

on valuation processes and results are held at least once in a year.
The main level 3 inputs are derived and evaluated as follows:
a) Discount rate is arrived at considering the internal and external factors.

b) Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilltles are non-current, and the impact of the discounting is material

(iv) Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilitics Measured at Amortised Cost

Current Year Previous Year
Particulars Canrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
Investments
i) Investment in Preference Shares of Bark and Financial Institutions - - - -
ii) Investment in Debentures 11,655,430,000 11,655,430,000 9,590,682,000
iii) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government) 1,373,779,500 1,373,779,900 100,000,000
iv) Fixed Deposit 70,779,316,161 70,779,316,161 63,933,122,110
v) Others (to be Specified)
Loans
i) Loan to Associates - -
ii) Loan to Employees 111,336,140 111,336,140 68,909,904
ili) Loan to Agent 69,386,573 69,386,573 108,623,607
iv) Loan to Policyholders 21,718,893,110 21,718,893,110 18,111,242,281
) Othets (to be Specified)
Other Financial Assets 2,968,074,917 2,342,313,636
Total Financial Assets at Amortised Cost 105,708,141,854 108,676,216,801 - 94,254,900,538
Borrowings
i) Bonds - - -
ii) Debentures - - -
iii) Term Loans - Bank and Finandal Institution - - -
iv) Bank Overdrafts - - -
v) Cthers (to be Spadified) - - -
Other Financiat Liabilities - 1,341,338,768 1,261,774,178
Total Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost - 1,341,338,768 - 1,261,774,178

The fair values of the above financial instruments measured at amortised cost are calculated based on cash flows discounted using current discount rate.
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values due to their short-term nature.

?mm—- La_p-n-—W
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LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

47 Financlal Risk

The Company's activities expose it to Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk & Market Risk.

) Credit Risk
Cradit risk is the rlsk of finandlal Joss as a esult of the default or failure of third parties to meet their pay bligations to the Company, Thus, for an insurance contract, credit sk
tncludes the risk that an Insurerincurs a financial loss because a reinsurer defaults on its obligations under the contract.

The following policles and d are in place to mitigate the Company’s exposuse to evadit risk:
P P P P: exp!

) Company has credit risk policy which sets out the and di on of what itutes credit risk for the Company. Compliance with the policy is monitored and exposures
and breaches are reported to the Company’s risk ittee. The policy is regutarly d for p and for changes in the risk environment.

b} Relngurance is placed with counterpartles that have a good credit rating and concentration of risk is avolded by catering into agreement with more than one paity. At each reporting
date, i an of hi and updates the reinsurance purchase strategy, ing suitable all for Impal

¢) The company deals with only creditworthy counterparties and obtains suffici Ifateral where appropriate, as s means of mitigating the risi of financial loss from defaults,

Expected Credit Losses for Financial Assets at Amortised Costs as at Ashadh 31, 2080

Expected . .
N Gross Carrying e Expected Credit | Carrying Amount
Particulars Asset Group Amount probability of Loases After Provision
Default
Credit Risk has not significandy increased since TLoss ail d at 12
inittal recognition months expected credit losses
Credit Risk has significantly increased and not
|ereditimpalred Loss altowance measured at life-
(Credit Risk has significantly increased and credit | time expected credit losses
Impaired
Expected Credit Losses for Financial Assets at Amortised Costs as at Ashadh 31, 2081
. Gross Carrying . Expected Credit | Carrying Amount
L
Particatars AssetGroup Amount probability of Losses After Provision
Default
Credit Risk has not significantly increased since Loss all d at 12
initial recognition months expected credit losses
Credit Risk has significantly increased and not
credit ired Loss allowance measured at life-
Credit Risk has significantly increased and credit  |time expected credit losscs
impaired
Reconciliation of Loss Allowance Provision
Measured at life-time expected credit
losees
Measured at 12 Credit Risk has | Credit Risk has
Particulars mnnl:: e;qn:kd significantly significantly
credit losses ased and not increased and
eredit impatred eredit impaired
Loss Allowance an Ashadh 31, 2080
Changes in loss allowances
Write-offs
Recoveries
Loss Allowance on Ashadh 31, 2081 - - -
ii) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financia! biabilities that are scitled by delivering cash or another financial asset, In
respect of catastrophic events there is also a liquidity risk assoclated with the timing differences between gross cash out—flows and expected reinsurance recoveries.

Maturity of Financial Liabilities:

The table below rises the Company's Financial Liabilities into Rel Maturity Groupings based on their Contractual Maturities for all Financial Liabilitics.
Current Year Previous Year
Particulars
Upto1Year | 1Yearto5 Year | More than 5 Year Upio 1 Yaar 1Yearto5 Year | More than 5 Year
Borrowings
Othet Financlal Liabilities

Total Financial Liabilitics - - - - .




LIFE INSURANCE CORFPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

i) Market Risk
a1) Fareign Currency Risk Expasure
Foceign exchange risk s the potential for the Company to expedence volatility in the value of Its assets, liabilities and solvency and to cuffer actual financlal losses as a result of changes
in value between the currencies of its assets and labilitles and its reporting currency. The Company does not maintain foreign currency di d assets in its portfoli

and as such is not exposed to foreign exchange risk related to investments.

The Company has no significant concentration of currency risk. The amount with reinsurer is settted in Nepali Rupee,

Alternative note for Foreign Currency Risk Exposure (where there is Forelgn Currency Risk}
Operation of the Company has exposed it to fareign exchange cisk arising from forelgn currency transactions, with respect to the USD and Currency A. The risk is measured through a
forecast of highly probable lorcign currency cash flaws. The objective of the hedges is to minismise the volatility of the NPR cash flows of highly probable forecast transactions.

The Company's expasure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in NPR, are as follows:

Current Year Previous Year
Particulazs
usD Curvency A USD Currency A

Investments

Loans

Insurance Receivables
(Other Financial Assets

Less: Derivative Asscts
f) Forelgn exchange forward contracts - Sell Foreign Currency

i) Foreign exchange option contracts - Sell Foreign Currency

Net to Foreign Currency Risk/ {Assets) -

nsurance Payables
{Other Financial Liabilities

Lesk Derivative Liabilities
i) Foreign exchange forward contracts - Buy Foreign Currency
1) Foreign exchange option contracts - Buy Forelgn Currency

Net Exposure to Foreign Currency Risk/ (Liabilities) - .

2) Foreign Currency Riskt - Sunasitivity
The sensitivity of profit or loss 1o changes in the exchange cates arises mainly from foreign y d d financial i and the impact on the other components of cquity
arising from foreign forward exchang foreign exchange option designated as cash flow hedges

Particulars Impact on profit after tax Impact an other component of equity

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Yecar

USD sensitivity
NFR/ USD - Increases by 10% *
INFPR/ USD - Decreases by 10% *

Currency A sensitivity
INPR/ USD - Increases by 10% *
NPR/ USD - Dy by 10%*

* Holding all other variable constant

b1) Interest Rate Risk
Interest eate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a fi ial will i because of changes in market interest rates.

The major interest rate risk that the Company is exposed to is the di rate for d g liabifities.

b2) Interest Rate Senuitivity
Profit ar Loss is sensitive to changes In Interest Rate for Borrowings. A change in Market Interest Level by 1% which is reasonably possible based on Management's Assessment would

have the following effect on the Profit After Tax,

Particulars Current Year Previons Year
Inierest Rate - Increase By 1%
Interest Rate - Dacrease By 1%*
* Holding sll other Variable Constant
€1} Equity Price Risk
Equity price ik is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial § will fl because of changes in equity prices (other than those arising from interest rate

sk or currency risk), whether those changes are eaused by factors specific to the individual financlal instrament or its issuer, or by factors affecting all similac financtal
traded in the market.

The Company has invested in equity ities and the exp s equity securilies price risk from investments held by the Company and cl d in the of fi

o\ .
f 2

ﬁc.,vm—- Ccuu--W




LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED
Notes to the Financlal Statements
¢2) Sensitivity
‘The table below rises the impact of i fd of the index in the Company’s equity and impact on OCT for the period. The analysis is based on the assumption that the
equity Index had increased/ decreased by 1% with all other variables held constant, and that all the Company's equity instruments moved in line with the lndex.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Interest Rate - Increase By 1%"*
e
[interest Rate - Decrease By 1%"

* Other compenents of equity would increase/decrease as a result of gains/ (losses) on equity securities classifled as fair value through other comprehensive income.

48 Operational Risk

Operational Risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss, or damaged reputati ting from inadequate or fafled intemal processes, people and systems or extemal evenis. When conteols fail
to perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications or ¢an lead to financial loss. The Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational
tisks, but by arig control i rk and by monitoring and responding to potential risks, the Company is able to manage the risks. Controls include effective segregation of
duties, access controls, auth fon and cillation proced! staff education and : duding the use of intemal audit. Business risks such as changes in

enviconment, technology and the industry are ftored through the Company’s gic planning and budgeting pracess.

49 Climate Risk
Qlimate risk refers to the potential adverse impacts and consequences of climate change on various aspects of human society, ecosystems, and economic activities.

Climate change Is one of the most significant challenges of present time. The world’s key environment and social challenge such as population growth, energy security,
loss of biodiversity, global warming, effect in health, occurance of catastrophic events and access to drinking water and food are closely intertwinded with the climate

change.

The commitment to sustainability to aveid the negative impacts of climate change, loss of biodiversity, social and environmental impacts will mainly attract principle
refated to managing climate risk related financlal risk and taking action of the company on Net-Zero future. To underpinning these two main areas there are five
strategic pillars which arc described as follows;

1. Govemnance: The company has a strong system of governance, with effective and robust controls. The risk officer should report the activities carried out by the
company to i risk g and solvency committee about the climate related risks and opportunities that are identified, measured, monltored, and
managed based on the risk management framework and in line with the risk appetite.

2. Protecting our policyholder: Climate change is a global challenge posing material risk to sodety and the economy. The natural « phes shows that ¢ ly
around quarter of total economic losses are caused by the extreme weather and climate related events, leading to inable i e, The bility and pricing of
climate related risk become Increasingly critical ¢ for the campany. The company the expected growth in physical zisk exp and i e clalms

due to dlimate change will increase risk based premium levels over time, potentially impairing mid tolong term affordability and availability of Insurance produtcs with
coverage against climate related hazards.

3. Protecting our own assets; The company aims to invest in the environment friendly projects such as climate resilient infrastractures, tenewable energy, clean
tr ion, water cleaning, and pollution control The may be made on the Green Bonds that have a goal to achi the inable develop goals

P
and are pivotal in supporting global net zero target.

&. Allocation of catastrophe reserves: The company transfers 10% of net profit amount to catastrophe reserve for meeting losses arising from an unexpected catastrophic
event, Further, the company has pdlicy for ceding catastrophic risk which will be covered in reinsurance trealy of the campany. In addition, company aims to allocate
reserve on climate related risk based on the actuarial calculation and reserve required to address.

5. Reducing direct climate impacts: The company has ecofriendly social initiatives through its corporate soclal responsibility program and is also focusing on using
exofriendly materials

50 Capital Management
The Company's objectives when managing Capital ere ta:
a) -guard their ability to a3 a golng concern so that they can continur to provide returns for sharcholders and benefits for other stakcholders, and
b} Matntain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capltal,
In arder to malntaln or adjust the capital steucture, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return eapital to sharcholders or issue new shares.

Regulatory minimum paid up eapital

Life panies were required by the Directive of Nepal L Authority to attain a stipulated paid up capital of NPR XXX billion by XXXX 20XX. As on the
Dividend

Particulars Current Year Previons Year
T Dividend enised
Final dividend for the year ended Ashadh .., 20X1 of NPR ... —J- (Ashadh .., 20X1 - NPR ......../) per fully paid share

(ii) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period
In addition to the above dividends, since the year ended the directors have ded thep of a final dividend of NPR ........J- per fuily

AN




LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED
Noias 10 the Financial Statements

51 Earnings Per Bhare

Particulacs Current Year Previous Year
Profit For the Year used for Caleulating Basic Faming per Share 829,607,185 753,449,165
Lesa: Dividend on Pref Share
Add: Interest saving on Convertible Bondy
Profit For the Year used for Calculating Diluted Earning per Share $29,607,185 753,449,165
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding During the Year For Basic Eaming per Share 26,532,000 26,532,000
| Adjustments for caleulation of Diluted Earning per Share:
1) Dilutive Shares
i) Options
Jiiiy Convertible Bonds
Welghted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding During the Year for Diluted Barning Per Share 26,532,000 26,532,000
Nominal Value of Equity Shares
Basic Earnings Per Share 3127 28.40
Diluted Earnings Pex Share 31.27 28.40
Proposcd Bonus Share
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding During the Year for Restated Eaming Per Share 26,532,000 26,532,000
Restated Basic Eurning Per Share 3127 28.40
Ilnhud Diluted Exming Per Share 31.27 28.40

A%
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LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEFPAL) LIMITED
Recommendatory Notes to the Financial Statements

¢) Reconciliation of Segmental Profit with Statement of Profit or Loss

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Segmental Profit 2,707,246,145 2,456,615,923
Less: Employee Benefits expenses 80,526,363 (116,064,557)
Less: Depreciation and Amortization (5,429,604) (5,519,279)
Less: Impairment losses (1,208,057)
Less: Other operating expenses (53,894,065) (73,355,227)
Less: Finance Cost (2,054,673) (2,391,851)
Add: Unallocable Other Income 530,995,173 480,435,319
Profit Before Tax 3,257,389,344 2,738,512,272
d) Reconciliation of Assets

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Segment Assels 28,942,869 22,350,904
Goodwill & Intangible Assets 97,200 138,192
Property and Equipment 424,229,329 461,401,762
Investment Properties -

Deferred Tax Assets 120,544,690
Investment in Subsidiaries

Investment in Associates

Investments 100,302,577,745 86,515,391,113
Loans 22,213,684,173 21,882,162,802
Current Tax Assets 276,532,369 -
QOther Assets 8,236,838 11,350,971

Other Financial Assets 3,269,414,425 2,968,074,917
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,857,624,512 2,449,593,817
Total Assets 128,381,339,460 114,431,009,169
e) Reconciliation of Liabilities

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Segment Liabilities 119,719,411,716 106,369,761,671
Provisions 98,835,270 34,732,802
Deferred Tax Liabilities 18,450,239 -
Current Tax Liabilities - 112,573,584
Other Financial Liabilities 1,085,519,188 1,341,338,768
QOther Liabilities 593,165,793 596,263,951
Total Liabilities 121,515,382,207 108,454,670,776




LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

53 Related Party Disclosure
(a) Identify Related Parties
Holding Company: Life Insurance Corporation of India

Subsidiaries: NA
Associates: NA
Fellow Subsidiaries: NA .

Key Management Personnel:
s oy ool « = Position,

Mr, Siddhartha Mohanty Chairman

Mr. Tablesh Pandey Director

Mr. Ashok Kumar Agrawal Director

Mrs. Komal Agrawal Public Director

Mr. Praveen Kumar Molri Independent Director

Mr. Pranay Kumar Director & CEO

Mr. Anirban Datta DCEO

Mr. T. Burnawal Ex-DCEQ

Mr. Rohit Budiyal CTO

Mr. Sanjeev Aggarwal Ex-CTO

(b) Key M P 1 Ci tion: Chief Technical officer & Deputy Chief Excecutive Officer

8 P

Particulars Curzent Year Previous Year
Short-term employee benefits 28,304,633 30,823,448
Post-employment benefits
Other long-term benefits

Termination benefits
Total 28,304,633 30,823,448

Payment ta Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Annual salary and allowances 11,944,316 11,422,210
Performance based allowances

i) Employee Bonus

ii) Benefits as per prevailing provisions

i) Incentives
Insurance related benefits

i) Life Insurance

ii) Acddent Insurance

iii) Health Insurance (including family members)
 Total 11,944,316 11,422,210

{¢) Related Party Transactions:

Holdi: M ial
olding Subsidiaries | Associates h_u?w, K",’_ Anage‘rla
Company Subsidiaries P

Particulars Total

|Premium Earned
Current Year
Previous Year

= PR
Current Year
Previous Year

Rental Income
Current Year
Previous Year

Interest Income
Current Year
Previous Year

Sale of Property & Equipment
Current Year
Previous Year

Purchase of Property & Equipment
Current Year
Previous Year

?w‘-‘”— W




LIFE INSURANCE CORIFORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

53 Related Party Discl

Premium Paid
Current Year
Previous Year

?wm._ W




53 Related Party Disclosure

Notes Lo the Financial Statements

LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED

Particulars

Holding
Company

Subsidiaries

Associates

Fellow
Subsidiaries

Key Managerial
Personnel

Total

C ission Expenses

Current Year

Previous Year

Dividend

Current Year

Previous Year

Meeting Fees

Current Year

§94,000.00

894,000]

Previous Year

964,200.00

964,200

Allowances to Directors

Current Year

Previous Year

Others {service fee)

Current Year

4,258,106

4,258,106

Previous Year

4,258,106

4,258,106

{d) Related Party Balances:

Particulars

=YD
alding Subsidiaries

Associates

Fellow
Subsidiaries

Key Managerial

Tatal

Iteceivables including Reinsurance Receivables

Current Year

Previous Year

Other Receivables (to be Specified)

Current Year

Previous Year

Payables including Reinsurance Payables

Current Year

Previous Year

Other Payables (to be Specified)

Current Year

Previous Year




LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

54 Leases

(a) The ¢

y has intialy

4

gnised the Right of Use assets at the amount of lease liability Plus any initfal direct cost incurred by the group. Right of Use asset has been depreciated

over the Period of Accumulated Lease term on straightline Basis. Right of Use Assets shall be measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment and
adjusted for any te-measuremert of the lease liability. Right of Use assets has been presented on Property and Equipments on Note 5. The lease Liability is initially measured at the

present value of the lease payments payable over the lease term, discounted at incremental borrowing rate.

Depreciation on Right of Use Assets amounting to NPR. 41,504,506 and interest on lease liability amounting to NPR. 20,546,728 has been recognized on profit or loss account

Future Mini Lease Payments Current Year | Previous Year
i) Not Later than 1 year 51,488,492 47,383,834
Jii) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 221,756,887 176,853,850
iii) Later than 5 years 22,111,127 3,543,859
Total Future Minimum Lease Payments 295,356,506 228,281,544
Less: Effect of Discounting 93,284,450 16,349,640
Finance lease liability recognised 202,072,056 209,431,904

(b) Leases as Lessor

Company has not leased any assets on this reporting fiscal year and in its comparative year.

55 Capital Commitments
Company has no capital commitments as on reporting date.

56 Contingent Liabilities
Company has no contingent liabilities balance as on reporting date.




LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

57 Events occuring after Balance Sheet
The Board of Directors, in its meeting held May 14, 2025, proposed a dividend of 10.53%, for the financial year ended 2081.03.31 {July 15, 2024). The proposed dividend i5 subject to
approval by the shareholders at the upcoming Annual General Meeting (AGM).In accordance with the provisions of NFRS 10 (NAS 10) - Events After the Reporting Period, Paragraphs
12 and 13, this dividend has not been recognized as a liability in the financlal statements for the year ended 2081.03.31, since it was declared after the reporting period. However, it has
been disclosed here as a significant non-adjusting event,

58 Assets Pledged as Security (only if pledged)
Company has no any balance of Assets Pledged as security.

59 Corporate Social Responsibility
The company has allocated fund for Corporate Social Responsibility as per Insurer's financial statement related directives, 2080.

Particulars Current Year  Previous Year
Opening Provision 14,446,300 -
Addition : Transfet From Retained Earning 9,248,343 14,446,300
Less ; Utilization of Reserve - -
Add/ Less : Others - -
Closing Balance of Reserve 23,694,644 14,446,300

60 Miscellaneous
(i} All amounts are in Nepalese Rupees unless otherwise stated.
{ii) All figures are in the Nearest Rupee & Rounded off.

61 Others {to be Specified)
None.
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LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED
Major Financial Indicators

SN Particular dicat Fiscal Year
2080/81 2079/80 2078/79 2077/78 2076/77
Equily:
1 Net worth NFR 6,865,957,257 35,976,338,398 4,980,502,980 4,275403,522 3,454,340,738
2 Number of Shares Nos 26,532,000 26,532,000 26,532,000 22,110,000 20,100,000
3 Book value per shares NPR 258.78 225.25 182.72 193.37 173.33
4 ‘Net Profit NPR 829,607,185 753,449,165 776,320,501 777,634,104 720,586,710
5 Earning per Shares (EP§) NPR 31.27 2340 29.26 3517 35.85
6 Dividend per Shares (DPS) NPR 10.53 - - - .16
7 Market Price per Shares (MPPS) NPR 1,457 1,555 1415 2,342 1,330
8 Price Earning Ratio (PE Ratio) Ratio 46.60 54.76 48.36 66.59 37.10
9 Change in Equity % 14.89% 13.76% 18.94% 21.72%| 5.17%
10 Return on Equity % 12.92%i 12.61% 14.78% 17.62%!| 19.57%|
1 Alffiliate Ratio % - - - - -
12 Market Share Yo - - - - -
13 Net Eaming Ratio Yo 4.61% 4.32%| 4.28% 4.56%| 4.85%|
14 Solvency Margin % 145.60% 376.20% 450.82% 335.27% 349.53%
15 Gross Eamed F ium Growth Rate
Endowment o 0.49%] -1.28%, 11.11% 20.33%| 2.91%|
Anlicipated Endowment %o 12.70% 2.77% 24.01% 43.23% 17.02%|
Modified Endowment k) 2.67%| -2.02% 11.52% 15.50% -0.83%)|
Whole Lif¢ Policy % -13.69%) 28.36% -27.58% 8.49%) 61.51%
Term Insurance Policy % 12.83%| 7.54% 8.00%, 8.44%) 3,75%|
Special Term Policy % -19.19% =3.11% 6.69% 18.43%| -0.01%!
Endowment Single Premium % 167.84%) -34.11% «13.67% -5.61%| 94.24%
Micro Term Insurance % -B3.82%| -60.17% -33.28% -1.96% ~10.90%
16 First Year Premium Growth Rate
End Yo -22.69%| -13.93% =3.52%| 27.26% -29.99%
Anticipated Endowment % 35.38%)] -32.31%) 10.52%| 4.81%| 5.78%
Whole Life Policy % -44.39%] -54.78% -92.97% ~48.95% 30.74%|
Term Insurance Policy Y% -19.79%1 23.59% 10.59% 34.63% 35.22%
Special Tern Policy % -69.91%, 3.70% -12.42% 126.52%| -28.21%
Endowment Single Premium % -56.13%| -34.11% -13.67%) -5.61%| 94.24%)|
Single Premitim O.E % - - - - -
Micra Ternt insurance Ya -53.88%] -60.17%| -33.28%! -1.96% -10.90%.
17 Renewal Premium Growth Rate %
Endowment % 4.71%] 1.44%) 14.84%) 18.65% 15.88%|
Anticipated End, % 7.95% 15.29%| 29.66%| 69.20%] 26.07%
Whole Life Policy % -13.20%| -27.69% 5,36 %| 25.23% 100.95%
Term Insurance Policy Y 27.74%f 1.65%] 7.06%) 1.27% -2.46%
Special Term Policy % -12.82%)| -3.91% 9.47%] 10.75% 2.86%
Endowment Single Premium Ya - - - - -
Single Preminm O.E % - - - - -
Micro Term insurance % - - - - -
18 Single Premium Growth Rate %
Endowment % 43.87%| -34.11% -13.67%) 5.61% 94.24%
19 Reinsurance Ratio % 0.62%| 0.28% 0.49%| 0.55% 0.57%
20 Retention Ratio % 99.38%| 99.72% 99.51% 99.45%. 99.43%
21 | Net Reinsurance inflow / (Dutflow) % (62,288,005) (39,455,072) (18,336 407) 56,924,779 (32,325,393)
2 RIC Ission Income/ Premium Ceded % 13.30% 18.69%| 13.14%| 14.86% 36.82%
23 Gross Premium Revenue/ Equity % 263.73%) 292.29% 347.24%| 400.98% 428.31%
24 Net Premium Revenue/ Equity % 262.10%| 290.93% 345.53%| 398.77% 425.86%
25 Gross [nsurance PremiunyTotal Assets % 14.10%! 15.27% 18.33%| 2042% 21.21%
26 | Retum on Investments and Loan % 10.16% 9.30%: 9.44%| 9.96% 9.30%
Expenses:
by Regulatory Expenses % 16.24%!| 16.75% 15.25% 14.20% 17.56%
28 Managy P Ratio % 6.11%| 6.91% 5.66%| 5.90% 6.79%
25 [ ission Ratlo % 7.70%| 8.22%) 9.3%| 9.8% 10.5%
30 Direct Business Acquisition Ratio % 36.30% 38.62% 36.97% 33.98% 35.38%
31 Agents Related Expenses to_other operating expenses % 360.2% 3074% 260.12% 309.35% 415.05%
32 Agents Related Expenses to gross earned premitm % 2.34% 229% 2.59%| 2.92%| 4.41%
33 Employee Expenses to total expenses excluding claims & benefits % 17.93% 13.73% 15.96% 16.77%] 18.25%)|
Assets:
34 [ncrement in In t held % 15.94% | 13.29 16.10 20.73 20.27
35 Increment In loan % 1.52% 19.63% 25.36% 7.93%] 38.96%
36 Liquidity Ratio % 179,80 1848 258.05 318.11 21826
37 Retum on Assets % 0.68% 0.66% 0.78% 0.93%] 1.02%|
38 Long term 1 /Total % 87.52% 93.41% 86.47% 82.89% 92.04%,
39 Short term © [Tetal Investments % 12.48% 6.59% 13.53% 17.11%] 7.96%
40 Total Investment & Loan/Gross [nsurance Contract Liabilities % 102.76% 101.93% 102.30% 100.97%; 101.65%
41 Investment in Unlisted Shares and Debtors/ Total Net Assets % 0.006% 0.006% 0.0007%| 0.44%] 1.20%
-
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Fiscal Year

SN Farticular 208081 2079780 2078079 2077778 2076/77

Llabilities:
42 Increment in Gross Insurance Contract Liabillties % 12.50%] 14.93% 15.75% 15.15% 24.10%
43 In¢rement in Life Insurance Funds % 12.52%)| 14.95%| 15.71%)| 19.17% 1417%
44 Claim Payment Reserve Including IBNR % 6.38% 13.99% 30.39%] 26.81% 26.05%
45 Gross Technical Provisions/ Gross Earned Premium % 638.10% 568.71% 507.37%| 465.72% 451.22%|
46 Gross Technical Provisions/ Total Equity % 1682.84% 1662.45%| 1762.53%| 1810.81% 1860.46%
47 Insurance Debt/ Total Equity % - - - - -
48 Loss Ratio % 1.88%| 2.03%| 2.94% 3.79%| 1.22%)
49 Persistency Ratio “ 92.45%, $4.03%| 94.86%) 92.47% 92.21%!
50 Lapse Ratio %* 6.85%; 3.16% 3.80%| 5.30%| 5.73%
51 No. of Outstanding Claim/ No. of Intl d Claims % 15.99% 21.11%| 18.25% 19.00% 16,33%
52 Total Number of Inforce Policies Nos 690,007 699,528 693485 674,779 764,378
3 Number of Renewed Policy/ Last Year's Total Number of In Force “ e 5.13% 654% 58.27% 5.56%

Pollcles

Others:
54 Declared Banus Rate Per'000 41-65 40-64 40-64 39-64 54-70
55 Interim Bonus Rate Per'000 40-64/ 40-64 40-64/ 39-64 54-70
56 Number of Offices Nos §1 81 81 76 78
57 Number of Agents (Active) Nos 5,979 7,596 7,285 6,238 5,947
58 Number of Employees No.s 242 244 236 242 246
59 Employees Expenses/Number of Employees Nos 1,952,164 1,568,146 1,601,774 1,437,135 1,135,175

(




Life Insurance Corporation (Nepal) Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended Ashadh 31,2081 (July 15", 2024)

1. General Information

Life Insurance Corporation (Nepal) Limited (herein after referred to as the 'Company') is a public limited
company, incorporated on December 26, 2000 and operated as Life Insurance Company after obtaining
license on August 7, 2001 under the Insurance Act 2049. The Life Insurance Corporation (Nepal} Limited
Company is a Joint Venture of Life Insurance Corporation of India.

The registered office of the Company is located at Star Mall, Putalisadak, Kathmandu, Nepal. The Company's
shares are listed on Nepal Stock Exchange on 215t March, 2003

The principal activities of the Company are to provide various life insurance products including participating
and non-participating products through its province offices, branches, sub-branches, and network of agents.

2. Basis of Preparation

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements of the Company comprises of Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit
or Loss and Statement of Other Comprehensive Income shown as two separate statements, Statement of
Changes in Equity, Statementof Cash Flows and Notes to the Financial Statements which have been prepared
in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) issued by the Nepal Accounting
Standards Board (ASB) and in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2006, directives
issued by Nepal Insurance Authority and required disclosures as per Securities Board of Nepal. The format
used in the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements and disclosures made therein also
complies with the specified formats prescribed in the directives of Nepal Insurance Authority.

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The term NEFRS, includes all the
standards and the related interpretations which are consistently used.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 02.04.2025

(b) Reporting Period and approval of financial statements

The Company reporting period is from 1%t Shrawan 2080 to 31t Ashadh 2081 (17t july 2023 to 15% July
2024) with the corresponding previous year from 1st Shrawan 2079 to 31+ Ashadh 2080 (17t July 2022 to

16% July 2023).
(c) Basis of Measurement

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for following Assets &
Liabilities which have been measured at Fair Value amount:
i. Certain Financial Assets and Liabilities which are required to be measured at fair value

ii. Defined Employee Benefits
iiii. Insurance Contract Liabilities which are required to be determined using actuarial valuation for Liability

Adequacy Test (LAT).

Historical cost is generally Fair Value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.




Fair Value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

In addition, for Financial Reporting purposes, Fair Value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 0r 2 or
3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the Fair Value measurements are observable & the significance
of the inputs to the Fair Value measurements in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical Assets or Liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2- Inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the Asset
or Liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3- Inputs are unobservable inputs for the Assetor Liability.

(d) Use of Estimates, assumption, and judgement

The preparation of these Financial Statements in conformity with NFRS requires management to make
estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the reported
balance of Assets & Liabilities, disclosures relating to Contingent Liabilities as at the date of the Financial
Statements and the reported amounts of Income & Expenses for the year presented. Actual results may differ
from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Changes in
estimates are reflected in the Financial Statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material,
their effects are disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements,

(e) Functional and Presentation Currency

03]

These Financial Statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is the Company’s functional
currency. All financial information presented in NPR has been rounded to the nearest rupee except where

indicated otherwise.
Going Concern

The financial statements are prepared on going concern basis. The Board of Directors have considered a wide
range of information relating to present and future conditions, including future projections of profitability,
cash flows and capital resources while assessing the going concern basis. Furthermore, Board is not aware
of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon Company's ability to continue as a going
concern and they do not intend either to liquidate or to cease operation of it

{g) Change in Accounting Policies

Accounting Policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by the
Company in preparing and presenting financial statements. The Company is permitted to change an
accounting policy only if the change is required by a standard or interpretation; or results in the financial
statements providing reliable and more relevant information about the effects of transactions, other events
or conditions on the entity's financial position, financial performance, or cash flow.

{(h) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Accounting standards issued and effective

AR accounting standards issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) except mentioned
below are effective and has been applied in preparation of these Financial Statements.

Accounting standards issued and non-effective

Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) has issued NFRS 17 (Insurance Contracts) which is yet to
be effective.




)

(1))

Carve-outs

The Company has not applied any carve outs provided by the ASB except the accounting standard that are
issued but not effective in our financial year.

Presentation of financial statements

The assets and liabilities of the Company presented in the Statement of Financial Position are grouped by the
nature and listed in an order that reflects their relative liquidity and maturity pattern.

(k) Offsetting

Mm

3.

(a)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial
Position, only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. Income and
expenses are not offset in the Statement of Profit or Loss unless required or permitted by Nepalese Financial
Reporting Standards or Interpretation (issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC) and Standard Interpretations Committee (SIC) and as specifically disclosed in the
Significant Accounting Policies of the Company.

Materiality and Aggregation

Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the Financial Statements. Items of dissimilar
nature or function are presented separately, unless they are immaterial as permitted by the Nepal
Accounting Standard-NAS 1 on "Presentation of Financial Statements’,

Notes to the Financial Statements are presented in a systematic manner which ensures the understandability
and comparability of Financial Statements of the Company. Understandability of the Financial Statements is
not compromised by obscuring material information with immaterial information or by aggregating material
items that have different natures or functions.

Significant Accounting Policies
Goodwill and Intangible Assets
i) Recognition

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated
impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalized development costs, are not
capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in Statement of profit or loss in the year in which the
expenditure is incurred.

Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalized only when it increases the future economic
benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

ii)Amortization

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. An intangible asset shall be
regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on an analysis of all of the relevant factors, there is
no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflow for the entity.

Amortization is recognized in statement of profit of loss on Balance Method (DBM), from the date that is
available for use since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic
benefits ¢ ied in the asset. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset




with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or
the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to
modify the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates, The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement of
profit or loss.

Useful Life of Intangible Assets based on DBM is categorized as stated below:

List of Assets Categories 7 Usé?ufiiifé (In Yéérs)g for SLMz 90

Software 25%

Licenses Not Applicable
iii)Derecognition

An Intangible Asset is derecognized when no Future Economic Benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the Asset. Any Gain or Loss arising on the derecognition is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the Asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit
or Loss.

iv)Impairment of Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that Intangible Assets
may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to determine
the extent of impairment, if any. An impairment loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss to the
extent, asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an
asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash
flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and risk specific to the assets.

(b) Property and Equipment (P&E)
i) Recognition

Freehold land is carried at historical cost and other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation when, it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and it can be used for more than one year and the
cost can be measured reliably.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it meets the recognition criteria as mentioned above. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

ii)Revaluation

After recognition as an assets, lands and buildings whose fair value can be measured reliably, have been
carried at revalued amount at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Valuations are being performed to ensure that the fair value of
arevalued asset does not materially differ from its carrying amount as at the reporting date. Valuation of the
land and buildings are undertaken by professionally qualified valuers.

An increase in the carrying amount as a result of revaluation, is recognized in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of revaluation reserve. However, the increase is recognized in
profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognized in
profit and loss. A decrease in the carrying amount as a result of revaluation, is recognized in profit or loss.




However, the decrease is recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent of any credit balance
existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset.

Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying
amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any
revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset being sold is transferred directly to retained earnings.
Difference between depreciation on the revalued carrying amount of the asset and depreciation based on the

asset's original cost is transferred to retained earnings.
iii)Depreciation

Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment other than the Freehold Land i.e. the Company's Freehold
Building, Plant & Machinery, Vehicles & Other Assets is provided on Diminishing Balance Method ((DBM)"
based on Useful Life estimated by technical expert of the management.

The Assets Useful Life/ Rate of Depreciation and Residual Values are reviewed at the Reporting date and the
effect of any changes in estimates are accounted for ona prospective basis.

Useful Life of Property, Plant and Equipment based on SLM/DBM is categorized as stated below:

List of Assets Categories .~ .. |, Usefulufe(ln@f;ﬁﬂfgrhm/katgfo&wuv
Land Not Applicable
Buildings Not Applicable
Leasehold Improvement Lease Period
Furniture & Fixture 25%
Computers and IT Equipment 25%
Officer Equipment 25%
Vehicles 20%
Other Assets 25%
iv)Derecognition

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognized up to disposal or when no Future Economic
Benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the Asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

v)Impairment of Assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the Asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value
less cost of disposal and vatue in use. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to
their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and risk specific to the assets. Assets that suffer an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at the end of each reporting period. In case of such reversal, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased so as not to exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had there been no

impairment loss.




(©)

vi)Capital Work-In-Progress

These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings, major plant and
machinery and system development which are to be capitalized. Capital Work in Progress would be
transferred to the relevant asset when it is available for use. Capital Work in Progress is stated at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses.

Investment Properties

Cost Model
Property that is held for rental income or for capital appreciation or both, is classified as investment

property. Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including related transaction cost. It is
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized to the
asset's carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the company and the cost can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

Land is carried at historical cost; however, buildings are depreciated over their estimated useful lives as
mentioned above.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of, or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.
Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognized in the statement
of profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal.

Transfer is made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from
investment property, the Company accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
PPE up to the date of change in use.

Explanatory notes:

The company does not have any investment properties.

(d) Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities

Deferred Tax Assets are recognized to the extent thatitis probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible Temporary difference and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilized. Deferred Tax Liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable Temporary Difference.

The carrying amount of Deferred Tax Assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the Deferred
Tax Asset to be utilized.

_P:)perty and Equipment (4,657,322) (44,461,501} (49,118,824)
Financial Assets at FVTOCI 23,715,242 (50,119,562) (26,404,320)
Provision for Leave 6,205,965 6,724,606 12,930,571
Provision for Gratuity 3,524,908 (14,255,738) (10,730,830)
Impairment Loss on Financial Assets 91,755,897 (87,392,642) 4,363,255
Others (Lease Liability as per NFRS 16) - 50,518,014 50,518,014
Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities) 120,544,690 (138,986,823) (18,442,133)




(e) Financial Assets
i) Initial Recognition & Measurement

Financial Assets are recognized when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the Financial Instrument. The Company determines the classification of its Financial Assets at
initial recognition.

When Financial Assets are recognized initially, they are measured at Fair Value, plus, in the case of Financial
Assets not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
Financial Asset. Transaction costs of Financial Assets carried at Fair Value through Profit or Loss are
expensed in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

ii)Subsequent Measurement

a) Financial Assets carried at Amortized Cost (AC)

A Financial Asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the
Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income in these financial assets is measured using effective
interest rate method.

b) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

A Financial Asset is measured at FVTOC! if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by
both collecting contractual cash flows and selling Financial Assets and the contractual terms of the Financial
Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding. These financial assets are measured at fair value and changes are taken to
statement of other comprehensive income.

¢) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

A Financial Asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL. These financial
assets are measured at fair value and changes are taken to statement of profit or loss.

iii)De-Recognition

A Financial Assets is derecognized only when the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows
from the Financial Assets. Where the Company has transferred an Asset, the Company evaluates whether it
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the Financial Asset. In such cases, the
Financial Asset is derecognized. Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership of the Financial Asset, the Financial Asset is not derecognized. Where the Company retains
control of the Financial Asset, the Asset s continued to be recognized to the extent of continuing involvement
in the Financial Asset.

iv)Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred since the
initial recognition of the asset (an incurred 'loss event’) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and observable data indicating that there is a
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measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions
that correlate with defaults.

Explanatory notes:

The company has investments in term deposits of banks and government bonds. These financial assets are
carried at Amortized Cost. Insurance receivables and other financial assets are recognized at realizable value.
Detail of cumulative impairment loss on the financial assets has been presented below:

Financial Assets | Measured at | Gross Carrying | Cumulative | NetBalance | Impairment

Value Impairment Disclosure
Loans to Agent | Amortized Cos} 50,606,909 17,453,021 33,153,888 | Incurred Basis.
Sundry Debtors | Amortized Cos} 9,075,815 461,837 8,613,978 Incurred Basis.
TOTAL 59,682,724 17,914,858 41,767,866

Out of cumulative Impairment of NPR. 1,7914,858 there is no impairment expense related to the financial
year 2080.81.

Reinsurance Assets

Reinsurance assets are the assets which are created against insurance contract liabilities of the amount
which are recoverable from the reinsurer, These assets are created for the reinsurer's share of insurance
contract liabilities.

A reinsurance asset is impaired if there is objective evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after the
initial recognition of the reinsurance asset, that the Company may not receive allamounts due to it under the
terms of the contract, and the event has a reliably measurable impact on the amount that the company will
receive from the re-insurer. If a reinsurance asset is impaired, the company reduce the carrying amount
accordingly and is recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Explanatory notes:
The company has not created reinsurance assets for Claim Payment however insurance receivable is booked.

Current Tax Assets

Current Tax Assets are the assets which are created against the excess amount paid as advance tax than the
actual income tax liability.

{h) Cash & Cash Equivalent

Cash & Cash Equivalents includes Cash in Hand, Cheque in Hand, Bank Balances and short-term deposits with
a maturity of three months or less.

Financial Liabilities
i) Initial Recognition & Measurement
Financial Liabilities are recognized when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the contractuat

provisions of the Financial Instrument. The Company determines the classification of its Financial Liabilities
at initial recognition.
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(k)

M

All Financial Liabilities are recognized initially at Fair Value, plus, in the case of Financial Liabilities not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the issue of the Financial Liability.
ii)Subsequent Measurement

After initial recognition, Financial Liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized costusing the Effective
Interest Method.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the date of Statement of Financial Position, the
carrying amounts approximate Fair Value due to short maturity of these instruments.

iif)De-Recognition

A Financial Liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing Financial Liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and
the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the netamount is reported in the Statement of Financial Position
where there is legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Explanatory notes:

The company has not offset financial assets with liabilities in this reporting period.

Equity

Financial Instruments issued by the Company are classified as Equity only to the extent that they do not meet
the definition of a Financial Liability or Financial Asset.

Reserves and Funds

i) Share Application Money Pending Allotment: Not Applicable

if) Share Premium: If the Company issues share capital at premium, it receives extra amount other
than share capital such amount is transferred to share premium. The amount in share premium is
allowed for distribution subject to provisions of company act & regulatory requirement

iii) Catastrophe Reserve: 10% of net profit before adjustment of deferred tax income/expense is
transferred to this reserve as required by Insurer’s Financial Statement Related Directive, 2080.

iv) Fair Value Reserve: The Company has policy of creating fair value reserve equal to the amount of
fair value Gain recognized in statement of other comprehensive income.

v) Actuarial Reserves: his reserve is created against actuarial gain or loss on present value of defined
benefit obligation resulting from experience adjustments (the effects of differences between the
previous actuarial assumptions and what has occurred) and the effects of changes in actuarial
assumptions. The company performs revaluation of defined benefit obligation in annual basis at the

end of fiscal year.

vi) Revaluation Reserves: Reserve created against revaluation gain on property, plant & equipment &
intangible assets, other than the reversal or earlier revaluation losses charged to profit or loss.




Explanatory notes:
The company has not created revaluation reserve in this reporting period.

vii) Corporate Social Responsibility Reserves: 1% of net profit before adjustment of deferred tax
income/expense is transferred to this reserve as required by Insurer’s Financial Statement Related

Directive, 2080.

viii)  Deferred Tax Reserves: Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used
for taxation purposes. Temporary difference arises from the item related to the statement of profit
and loss are transferred to this reserve as per the financial directive issued by NIA.

ix) oOther Reserves: Regulatory reserve represents the amount transferred to Regulatory Reserve due
to excess profit generated from NFRS based financial statement over GAAP based financial statement
as per regulatory provision. The company has regulatory reserve of NRs 331,031,641 which has not
been transferred to retained earnings.

(m) Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities
Liability adequacy

At each reporting date, the Company reviews its unexpired risk and a liability adequacy test is performed to
determine whether there is any overall excess of expected claims and deferred acquisition costs over
unearned premiums. The calculation uses current estimates of future contractual cash flows after taking
account of the investment return expected to arise on assets relating to the relevant life insurance technical
provisions. If these estimates show that the carrying amount of the unearned premiums is inadequate, the
deficiency is recognized in the statement of profit or loss by settingup a provision for liability.

(n) Employee Benefits

i)Short Term Obligaticns

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are
recognized in respect of employees' services upto the end of the reporting period and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled, The liabilities are presented as current employee
benefit obligation in the Statement of Financial Position.

ii)Post-Employment Benefits

-Defined Contribution Plan

The Company pays Provident Fund contributions to publicly administered Provident Funds as per local
regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contribution are recognized as
Employee Benefit Expenses when they are due.

-Defined Benefit Plan

For Defined Benefit Plan, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method,
with Actuarial Valuations being carried out at each Statement of Financial Position. Actuarial Gains & Losses
are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income in the period in which they occur. Past service cost is
recognized immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested and otherwise is amortized ona
Straight-Line Basis over the average period until the benefits become vested. The retirement benefit
obligation recognized in the Statement of Financial Position represents the present value of the defined
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benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognized past service cost, as reduced by the Fair Value of plan Assets
(If Any). Any Asset resulting from this calculation is limited to past service cost, plus the present value of
available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the plan.

iii) Long Term Employee Benefits

The liabilities for un-availed earned leaves are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees render the related service. Leave Encashment has been computed
using Actuarial Assumptions and these are measured at the present value of expected future payments to be
made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the year using the Projected Unit Credit
Method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the year that have terms
approximating to the terms of assumptions.

iv) Termination

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before the normal
retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary retirement in exchange of these benefits. The
Company recognizes termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates:

a) When the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and

b) When the entity recognizes costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of NAS 37 and involves the
payment of termination benefits. The termination benefits are measured based on the number of employees
expected to accept the offer in case of voluntary retirement scheme.

Revenue Recognition

Gross Premium

Gross premium income is recognized on a cash basis as and when it is due (Premium received but not due is
shown as advance premium under other liabilities) in accordance with Insurance Act. Cash received in
advance is recognized as premium income during the period to which they relate. Premium ceded to the
reinsurer during the year has been separately recognized under “Premium ceded to Reinsurer”. Entire single
premium income is recognized on a cash basis and related reserve is booked as per Actuarial valuation
directive, 2077 issued by the Nepal Insurance Authority.

Explanatory notes:
The above policy for recognition of gross premium income has been continued as NFRS 17 is yet to be

adopted.

jii} Unearned Premium Reserves

Unearned premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods of risk after
the reporting date. Unearned premiums are calculated on a pro rate basis. The proportion attributable to
subsequent periods is deferred as a provision for unearned premiums.

jii)Premiums on Reinsurance Accepted

Premium on reinsurance accepted comprise the total premiums payable for the whole cover provided by
contracts entered into the period and are recognized on the date on which the policy incepts. Premiums
include any adjustments arising in the accounting period in respect of reinsurance contracts incepting in
prior accounting periods. Unearned reinsurance premiums are those proportions of premiums written ina
year that relate to periods of risk after the reporting date.

Reinsurance premiums and claims on the face of the statement of profit or loss have been presented as
negative items within premiums and net benefits and claims, respectively, because this is consistent with
how the business is managed.




Explanatory notes:

The company has not accepted any reinsurance business in this reporting period.

iv) Commission Income
Commission Income is recognized on accrual basis. If the income is for future periods, then they are deferred

and recognized over those future periods.

v) Investment Income
Interest income is recognized in the statement of profit or loss as it accrues and is calculated by using the EIR
method. Fees and commission that are an integral part of the effective yield of the financial asset are
recognized as an adjustment to the EIR of the instrument.

vi) Net realized gains and losses
Net realized gains and losses recorded in the statement or profit or loss include gains and losses on financial
assets and properties. Gains and losses on the sale of investments are calculated as the difference between
netsales proceeds and the original or amortized cost and are recorded on occurrence of the sale transaction.’'

vii) Other Income
Other income includes profit on sale of property and equipment, finance income, and other miscellaneous

income.

{p) Benefit, Claims and Expenses

i) Gross Benefits and Claims
Benefits and claims include the cost of all claims arising during the year, including external claims handling

costs that are directly related to processing and settlement of claims. Benefits and claims that are incurred
during the financial year are recognized when a claimable event occurs and/or the insurer is notified. Death,
surrender and other benefits without due dates are treated as claims payable, on the date of receipt of
intimation of death of the assured or occurrence of contingency covered.

ii) Reinsurance Claims
Reinsurance claims are recognized when the related gross insurance claim is recognized according to the

term of the relevant contracts.

iii)Commission Expenses
Commission expenses are recognized on accrual basis. If the expenses is for future periods, then they are
deferred and recognized over those future periods.

iv) Service Fees:
Service fees are recognized on accrual basis as per the rates mentioned in Insurance act, 2079.

v) Finance Cost:
Finance costs are recognized for the period relating to unwinding of discount and interest expenses due to

re-measurement of liabilities.

(q) Product Classification
Insurance contracts are those contracts when the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant insurance
risk from another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a specified
uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders. As a general guideline, the
Company determines whether it has significant insurance risk by comparing benefits paid with benefits
payable if the insured event did not occur, Insurance contracts can also transfer financial risk.




The Company has following portfolios under which it operates jits business:

Endowment

This is a with profit plan that makes provisions for the family of the Life Assured in event of his early death
and also assures a lump sum at a desired age on maturity. It costs moderate premiums, has high liquidity and
in savings oriented. This plan is opt for people of all ages and social groups who wish to protect their families
from a financial setback that may occur owing to their demise.

ii} Anticipated

iii)

This scheme provides for specific periodic payments or partial survival benefits during the term of the policy
itself so long as the policy holder is alive. It is therefore suitable to meet specified financial requirements
needed for occasions like Brata Bandha, Academic Graduations etc. An important feature of plan is that in
the event of death at any time within the policy term, the death claim comprises full sum assured without
deducting any of the survival benefit amounts, which have already been paid. It is also with profit plan.

Endowment Cum Whole Life
This plan is a combination of Endowment Assurance and Whole Life with profit plan. It provided financial

protection against death throughout the lifetime of the life assured with the provision of payment of a lump
sum at the maturity of the policy to the assured in case of his survival.

iv) Whole Life

Whole life is a type of life insurance contract that provides insurance coverage of the contract holder for his
or her entire life. Upon the inevitable death of the contract holder, the insurance payout is made to the
contract's beneficiaries. These policies also include a savings component, which accumulates a cash value.
This cash value is one of the key elements of whole life insurance.

v) Other Term

vi)

()

()

Term life insurance, also known as pure life insurance, is life insurance that guarantees payment of a stated
death benefit during a specified term. Once the term expires, the policyholder can renew it for another term,
convert the policy to permanent coverage, or allow the policy to terminate.

Special Term
Special Term insurance is modified version of term insurance with added benefits.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended

use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Cash Flow Statement
Cash Flows are reported using the direct method, whereby major classes of cash receipts and cash payments

are disclosed as cash flows.




(f) Leases

The lease liability has been accounted for under NFRS 16 “Leases”. For all the significant lease, the Right-of-
Use assets has been recognized at its initial recognition under cash model. The Lease liability has been
recognized at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payment has
been discounted at the incremental borrowing rate in lease which is 10%.

After the commencement date, the right of use asset has been measured using cost model. The lease liability
has been increased to reflect interest on the lease liability & has been reduced by the lease payment.

Expenses recognized as per NFRS 16:

Particulars Amount
Depreciation on Right of Use (ROU) Assets 41,504,506
Finance Cost 20,546,728

Assets and Liabilities recognized as per NFRS 16:

Particulars Amount
Right of Use (ROU) Assets 179,341,824
Lease Liability 202,072,056

Short- Term Lease

Any lease agreement with non-cancellable period of up-to 12 months and lease agreement with value of
underlying assets identified as of low value have been identified and accounted for as Rent Expense. Lease
payments under such leases are booked as expense in straight basis or other basis, where appropriate,
normally in case of short-term leases. During the year, company has accounted Rs. 27,225 as rent

expenditure in Statement of Profit/(Loss).

(u) Income Taxes
Income Tax Expense represents the sum of the current tax & Deferred Tax.

i) Current Tax
Current Tax Expenses are accounted in the same period to which the revenue and expenses relate. Provision
for Current Income Tax is made for the Tax Liability payable on Taxable Income after considering tax
allowances, deductions and exemptions determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the

prevailing tax laws.

ii} Deferred Tax
Deferred Tax is recognized on temporary difference between the carrying amounts of Assets and Liabilities

in the Statement of Financial Position and their Tax Base. Deferred Tax Assets & Liabilities are recognized
for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of Assets & Liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable Profit nor Loss at

the time of the transaction.

(v) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets
i} Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligationasa result of past
events, for which it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.
Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate to determine the presen
value is a Pre-Tax Rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the ris




specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest
expenses.

Provisions for Contingent Liability are recognized in the books a matter of abundant precaution and
conservative approach based on management's best estimate. However, Management believes that chances
of these matters going against the company are remote and there will not be any probable cash outflow.

ii) Contingent Liabilities

iii)

W)

=)

)

(2)

Contingent Liabilities are recognized only when thereisa possible obligation arising from past events due to
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or where any present obligation cannot be measured in terms of future outflow of resources or
where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made. Obligations are assessed on an ongoing basis and
only those having a largely probable outflow of resources are provided for.

Contingent Assets
Contingent assets where it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company are not

recognized but disclosed in the Financial Statements.

Events After the Reporting Period

Proposed Dividend

The Board of Directors, in its meeting held May 14, 2025, proposed dividend of 10.53%, for the financial year
ended 2081.03.31 (July 15, 2024).

The proposed dividend is subject to approval by the shareholders at the upcoming Annual General Meeting
(AGM).

In accordance with the provisions of NFRS 10 (NAS 10) ~ Events After the Reporting Period, Paragraphs 12
and 13, this dividend has not been recognized as a liability in the financial statements for the year ended
2081.03.31, since it was declared after the reporting period. However, it has been disclosed here as a
significant non-adjusting event.

Functional Currency & Foreign Currency Transactions

The Financial Statements of the Company are presented in Nepalese Rupees, which in the Company's
Functional Currency. In preparing the Financial Statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other
than the Company's Functional Currency i.e.,, Foreign Currencies are recognized at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Earnings Per Share

Basic Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the company by the
Weighted Average Number of equities shares outstanding during the Financial Year.

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted to
assumed conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Operating Segment

Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (CODM) as defined by NFRS 8," Operating Segment”.

Company’s Income & Expenses including interest are considered as part of un-allocable Income & Expenses
which are not identifiable to any business segment. Company's Asset & Liabilities are considered as part of
un-allocable Assets & Liabilities which are not identifiable to any business.

The Company operates predominantly in Nepal and accordingly, the Management of the Company is of the
view that the financial information by geographical segments of the Company’s operation is not necessary to
be however the company does financial planning for measuring business performance of geographical area




within Nepal (as called "province offices”). The company has portfolios that are measured as business
segment

Business Segments of the company are:

Endowment
Anticipated Endowment

Modified Endowment
Whole Life Policy

Term Insurance Policy
Special Term Policy
Endowment Single Premium
Single Premium O.E

Micro Term insurance
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